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Chairman’s Statement
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), |
would like to present the annual report of G-Vision
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the financial year
ended 31 March 2022.

RESULTS

NEBHEHET2022F3831B L FEZKE
ZER A IREREAGEE L 514,100,0008
JC o R 181,946,314,1083 3 17 & @ A% 5t
2 ERREEE0. 728 -

The audited consolidated loss attributable to the
shareholders of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2022 was approximately HK$14.1 million. Loss per share
based on 1,946,314,108 ordinary shares in issue
amounted to HK$0.72 cents.

g DIVIDEND

EEGERATERIREEZT2022F3A The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment

31HIEFE 2 FARERE (20214 : &) © of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022
(2021: Nil).

X7 E REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

ﬁizozziﬁmamiﬁ PN SRE T 7

BeEA W A4114,600,00008 T 0 8=
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77,400,000/ 752¢208.1%

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recorded
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$114.6
million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$77.4 million or 208.1% from last year's consolidated
revenue of approximately HK$37.2 million.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (Continued)
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Restaurant Operations in Hong Kong

The Group is mainly engaged in the operation of
Chinese restaurants in Hong Kong which specialise in
Chiu Chow cuisine. Revenue from the restaurant
operations amounted to approximately HK$40.6 million
for the period under review, representing an increase of
approximately HK$3.4 million or 9.1% from the last
corresponding period of approximately HK$37.2 million.

The restaurant business improved in the first half of the
financial year in line with the progressive relaxation of
the social distancing measures. In addition, the
resumption of local tours as well as the launching of the
HK$36 billion Consumption Voucher Scheme by the
Hong Kong Government (“HK Govt”) had brought a
positive impact on the overall performance of our
restaurants.

The Group discontinued its restaurant operations at the
Cheung Sha Wan Plaza at the expiry of lease on 30
September 2021 but would reconsider to open a new
restaurant at similar location subject to further
negotiation with the landlord.

On 28 July 2021, the Group announced the plan to
open a new branch at Yue Man Square, Kwun Tong
under the trade name “Kwun Tong City Chiu Chow
Restaurant” (“KTCCC"). The entering into the Offer to
Lease for a fixed term of five years from 1 September
2021 would be regarded as an acquisition of asset by
the Group under the Listing Rules. Pursuant to HKFRS
16, the right-of-use asset recognised by the Group
under the Offer to Lease amounted to approximately
HK$13.6 million as at the commencement of lease. The
revenue for the Group in the month of October 2021
and November 2021 were lower as the KTCCC was still
under renovation. The grand opening ceremony was
held on 7 December 2021. The revenue of the Group
further improved with additional contribution from
KTCCC in the month of December 2021 and January
2022.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (Continued)
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Restaurant Operations in Hong Kong (Continued)

However, from 7 January 2022, the HK Govt further
tightened social distancing measures and imposed
complete ban on dine-in services after 6 p.m. and
restrictions on the number of patrons per table. Groups
of four were allowed with vaccinated staff members and
groups of six were only allowed for restaurants with
both vaccinated staff and customers. As all our staff
were fully vaccinated in early January 2022, the Group’s
restaurants were able to operate at the highest standard
as permitted. However, the rising fear in the community
of contracting COVID-19 deterred people from dining
out. There was a drastic drop in revenue for the Group’s
restaurants from January 2022.

Despite HK Govt's tremendous effort to contain another
outbreak, Hong Kong inevitably headed to the fifth
wave of epidemic as confirmed COVID-19 cases peaked
in the month of February and March 2022. As safety
measures, the Group decided to suspend its restaurant
operations for almost two months from mid of February
2022 resulting in a record low revenue of approximately
HK$2.6 million in the first quarter of 2022.

The Group applied for further subsidies from the HK
Govt under the fifth and sixth round of the
Anti-epidemic Fund and received HK$0.95 million in the
month of March 2022. As the Group also received
HK$1.1 million in August 2021 from the second round
of the Anti-epidemic Fund, the total amount of
government subsidies received for the year ended 31
March 2022 was $2.05 million. The total amount of
subsidies received in the last corresponding period was
approximately $5.7 million.

2021/22 Annual Report £k
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On 18 October 2019, GV Australia Pty Ltd (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
an agreement with a connected party in relation to the
development and construction of a low-rise apartment
block on the land comprising 26 apartments and certain
communal facilities situated in Camden, Sydney, New
South Wales, Australia. The transaction was approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 29 November 2019.

The construction commenced following the appointment
of HT Building Pty Ltd as the main contractor in March
2020. Rider Lovett Bucknall RLB Sydney, a reputable
quantity surveyor firm, had been appointed as the
certified quantity surveyor for the project. A project
control team was set up to oversee and monitor the
sales and development progress. The construction
progressed well amidst the COVID-19 pandemic and the
various lockdown measures in the state of New South
Wales. Following the issue of the occupation certificate
for the apartment block in October 2021, the Group
received and recognised property development income
of approximately A$12.9 million (HK$ equivalent of
HK$74.0 million) and cost of sales of approximately
A$11.5 million (HK$ equivalent of HK$66.3 million)
contributing a gross profit of approximately A$1.4
million (HK$ equivalent of HK$7.7 million) to the Group.
As at 31 March 2022, settlement was completed for 25
apartments.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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With COVID-19 and travel restrictions still ongoing and
the strict social-distancing measures still in effect, the
outlook is bleak for the food and beverage industry in
Hong Kong and the Group’s restaurant operations. Amid
the severely challenging operating environment, the
Group will adopt a more cautious approach in
committing further capital expenditure and will
implement various measures to mitigate the loss during
this difficult time such as increasing promotion and
discount to boost dine-in and takeaway businesses,
relentlessly negotiating rental concession with the
landlords and suspending the hiring of full-time and
temporary workers.

The Group will continue to review and revise its business
strategies from time to time with an aim to better
position itself to meet the challenges ahead and to
capture any new investment opportunities as they arise.
The property development project is considered as a
suitable opportunity for the Group to expand its
business activities and diversify risks with an aim to
improve the returns for its shareholders. The Group will
continue to expand its property development segment
and is actively seeking investment opportunities both in
Australia and in Hong Kong.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
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| would like to express my gratitude to the management
and staff members of the Group for their dedication and
invaluable efforts and contributions to the Group during
the year.

Cheng Hop Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2022
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For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recorded
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$114.6
million, representing an increase of 208.1% from the
previous year's revenue of approximately HK$37.2
million. The substantial increase in revenue was primarily
attributable to the recognition of approximately
HK$74.0 million of revenue from the Group's property
development business in Australia. The revenue from the
restaurant operations in Hong Kong was approximately
HK$40.6 million, representing an increase of 9.1% from
previous year's revenue of approximately HK$37.2
million.

The Group recorded a net loss of approximately
HK$14.1 million for the year under review compared to
a net loss of approximately HK$8.8 million for the last
corresponding period.

The increase in gross profit of approximately HK$10.0
million was contributed by the property development
segment of approximately HK$7.7 million and the
restaurant operations segment of approximately HK$2.3
million. The positive impact from the improvement in
profit margin, however, was offset by the decrease in
subsidies granted by the Hong Kong Government (“HK
Govt") of approximately HK$3.7 million; foreign
exchange movement of approximately HK$4.4 million
and also the write-off of the remaining balances of
property, plant and equipment for Hover City Chiu
Chow Restaurant following its closure in the beginning
of October 2021 of approximately HK$2.0 million.

The Group had received in total approximately HK$7.25
million subsidies from the HK Govt under various stages
of the Anti-epidemic Fund relief schemes since April
2020. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
recognised subsidies amounting to approximately
HK$2.1 million under the Catering Business (Social
Distancing) Subsidy Scheme for its restaurants. For the
year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recognised
approximately HK$5.2 million under the Catering
Business (Social Distancing) Subsidy Scheme for its
restaurant operations and approximately HK$0.5 million
under the Employment Support Scheme for its
management office.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
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The exchange loss of approximately HK$0.7 million
recognised for the year under review was mainly due to
the translation loss on the Group’s bank balances which
were denominated in Australian Dollar. The exchange
gain of approximately HK$3.7 million in the last
corresponding period was due to the revaluation of the
intercompany loan denominated in Australian dollar. The
intercompany loan was fully repaid during the year
ended 31 March 2022.

Total staff costs were approximately HK$19.2 million for
the year under review, representing an increase of
HK$0.5 million from the last corresponding period.

The adoption of HKFRS 16 on the new lease for Kwun
Tong City Chiu Chow Restaurant resulted in an addition
of right-of-use (“ROU") assets and the recognition of
lease liability each of approximately HK$13.6 million.
The depreciation charged for the ROU and the finance
costs on the lease liability amounted to approximately
HK$2.4 million and HK$0.4 million respectively for the
year under review.

After considering the latest development of the
COVID-19 epidemic in Hong Kong and the adverse
impact and uncertainties casted on the Group's future
cash flows stream, the management had adjusted the
cash flow forecast and adopted a more prudent view on
the business growth resulted in the recognition of
approximately HK$3.1 million and HK$1.9 million
impairment losses on the Group’s ROU assets and the
property, plant and equipment respectively for the year
ended under review.

2021/22 Annual Report £k
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Restaurant Operations in Hong Kong

Since January 2020, the food and beverage industry in
Hong Kong has been hit hard by the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic and the various social distancing
and quarantine measures imposed by the HK Govt. The
operations and financial results of the Group’s
restaurants in the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2022
were severely affected:

April to June 2021

As the fourth wave of the COVID-19 outbreak which
emerged in November 2020 subsided, the HK Govt
relaxed the social distancing measures by implementing
the “vaccine bubble” policy to dine-in catering premises
with effect from 29 April 2021. Under the “vaccine
bubble” policy, catering businesses are classified into 4
types of mode of operation, the key details of which are
summarised below:

o Type A: Dine-in services can be provided from 5
a.m. to 5:59 p.m. every day, with the number of
customers at the catering premises at any one
time not exceeding 50% of the normal seating
capacity of the premises and no more than two
persons seated together at one table. The
maximum number of persons per banquet is
capped at 20.

o Type B: All customers (excluding persons who only
order takeaways) must use the “LeaveHomeSafe”
mobile application or register their names, contact
numbers and the dates and times of their visits
before they are allowed to enter the premises. All
staff members involved in the operation of the
premises be tested once every 14 days. Dine-in
services can be provided from 5 a.m. to 9:59 p.m.
every day, with the number of customers at the
catering premises at any one time not exceeding
50% of the normal seating capacity of the
premises and no more than four persons seated
together at one table. The maximum number of
persons per banquet is capped at 20.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR
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E%EREE (&) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
ERBEER (&) Restaurant Operations in Hong Kong (Continued)
2021545 F6H (#&) April to June 2021 (Continued)
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Type C: All staff must have received the first dose
of COVID-19 vaccine. The whole or part of the
catering premises can be designated as
“Designated Zone C”, and all customers in the
zone must use the “LeaveHomeSafe” mobile
application. Within the “Designated Zone C”, the
catering business can provide dine-in services
from 5 a.m. to 11:59 p.m. every day, with the
number of customers at the catering premises at
any one time not exceeding 50% of the normal
seating capacity of the premises and no more
than six persons seated together at one table. The
maximum number of persons per banquet is
capped at 20.

Type D: All staff have completed the full course of
COVID-19 vaccination (which generally refers to
having received two doses of COVID-19 vaccine
plus 14 days). The person responsible for carrying
on a catering business can designate the whole or
part of the premises as “Designated Zone D", and
must ensure that all customers in the zone have
received the first COVID-19 vaccine dose and use
the “LeaveHomeSafe” mobile application. Within
the “Designated Zone D", the catering business
can provide dine-in services every day from 5 a.m.
to 1:59 a.m. on the subsequent day, with the
number of customers at the catering premises at
any one time not exceeding 75% of the normal
seating capacity of the premises and no more
than eight persons seated together at one table.
The maximum number of persons per banquet is
capped at 100.
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X% EIRE (58) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
ERBEEK (&) Restaurant Operations in Hong Kong (Continued)
2021445 £6 5 (#&) April to June 2021 (Continued)
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In order to comply with the above requirements and in
view of our customers’ needs and the vaccination
conditions of the staff, the Group's restaurants had to
operate under Type B/C/D mode or a combination of the
3 modes. The Group’s revenue in this period was
approximately HK$13.6 million, representing a 49%
increase from the previous quarter and a year-on-year
increase of 16%. The increase in revenue was due to the
fact that the revenue for the corresponding period in the
previous year was significantly lower as a result of the
suspension of operation of the Tsim Sha Tsui’s branch in
April 2020. Although the Group’'s business had
improved in May and June 2021 as the COVID-19
situation was largely under control, the Group’s revenue
was still 30% less than that of prior to the outbreak of
COVID-19. The absence of tourists’ business and the
lower corporate and local businesses continued to affect
our restaurant operations as more people stayed at or
worked from home. As local tours of not more than 30
persons were permitted provided that the relevant staff
had received their first dose of COVID-19 vaccine, local
tour business at our Tsim Sha Tsui’s branch began to
resume from June 2021.

July to September 2021

The global COVID-19 epidemic situation remained severe
during this period, with the prevailing Delta mutant
strain being highly transmissible and posed incredible
challenges to local anti-epidemic efforts. After
considering the operational risk of catering businesses,
especially the fact that customers had to take off their
masks when consuming food or drinks within the
catering premises, the HK Govt tightened the testing
requirement for staff of catering businesses which
adopted the Type B mode of operation. The staff would
be required to undergo more frequent testing, from
once every 14 days to once every seven days. The
operating environment remained difficult under the
different mode of operations.
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¥ bl (E) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
ERBEER (&) Restaurant Operations in Hong Kong (Continued)
2021475 95 (#&) July to September 2021 (Continued)
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In order to boost local consumption, the HK Govt
implemented the HK$36 billion Consumption Voucher
Scheme in July 2021, to disburse by instalments
electronic consumption vouchers with a total value of
$5,000 to each eligible and validly registered person.
The scheme had brought a positive impact to our
restaurant operations. The Group recorded a relatively
strong quarterly performance with revenue surged to
approximately HK$16.3 million, representing an increase
of 20% from the previous quarter and a year-on-year
increase of 140%. The significant year-on-year increase
in revenue was due to the tightening of social distancing
requirements by the HK Govt which prohibited dine-in
services at night time during the last corresponding
period in order to contain the spread of COVID-19 under
the third wave of COVID-19 outbreak, causing the
suspension of operation of the Tsim Sha Tsui’s branch
from 26 July 2020 to 19 August 2020 and the Cheung
Sha Wan Plaza’s branch from 29 July 2020 to 18 August
2020.

October to December 2021

From October to December 2021, although COVID-19
mutant strains including the latest Omicron variant was
spreading rapidly around the world, the epidemic
situation was relatively stable in Hong Kong. Starting
from 9 December 2021, all customers had to use the
“LeaveHomeSafe” mobile application before entering
the premises.

The revenue for this quarter was approximately HK$8.2
million, representing a decrease of 50% from the
previous quarter and a decrease of 17% compared to
the last corresponding period due to the closure of the
Cheung Sha Wan Plaza’s branch after its lease expired
on 30 September 2021. In spite of this, the year-on-year
decrease in revenue was relatively less significant since,
during the last corresponding period, the Cheung Sha
Wan Plaza’s branch suspended its dinner operations
from 10 December 2020 to 17 February 2021 in
response to the more stringent social distancing
measures under the fourth wave of COVID-19 outbreak.
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Restaurant Operations in Hong Kong (Continued)
October to December 2021 (Continued)

In addition, Kwun Tong City Chiu Chow Restaurant, the
new branch at Yue Man Square, Kwun Tong was still
under renovation in October and November 2021. It
commenced to contribute revenue to the Group
following its official opening on 7 December 2021.

Fifth Wave of COVID-19 Outbreak - January to
March 2022

In mid-January 2022, Hong Kong was facing the
imminent threat of both the Delta and Omicron mutant
strains spreading in the community. In late-January
2022, the HK Govt announced that bureaus and
departments would implement special work
arrangements, including allowing some staff to take
turns working from home. To further reduce the flow of
people and social contact in the community, the public
was encouraged to avoid gatherings among families
during the festive season in order to contain the
epidemic. The HK Govt also appealed to employers to
allow their staff to work from home as far as possible
according to their operational needs. All restaurant staff
would be required to have received at least the first
dose of COVID-19 vaccine by 24 February 2022 and
then at least second doses of COVID-19 vaccine after
eight weeks’ time. From 7 January 2022, dine-in services
for catering businesses were prohibited at night time.

On 27 January 2022, the HK Govt outlined its plan to
expand the vaccine pass arrangement whereby, starting
from 24 February 2022, all persons aged 12 or above
entering certain specified premises are required to
adhere to the vaccine pass arrangements by using the
LeaveHomeSafe mobile app and presenting their
vaccination record.
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Restaurant Operations in Hong Kong (Continued)

Fifth Wave of COVID-19 Outbreak - January to
March 2022 (Continued)

The January-March quarter is traditionally the peak
season for the food and beverage industry in Hong
Kong. However, the tightening of the various social
distancing measures coupled with the deteriorating
condition of the epidemic situation in Hong Kong
resulted in a significant downturn in our business. As a
result of the surge in the number of COVID-19
confirmed cases after the Chinese New Year period and
for the safety of our patrons and staff, the Tsim Sha
Tsui’'s branch was forced to completely suspend its
operations from 14 February to 9 April 2022. The Kwun
Tong’s branch also suspended its operations from 8
February to 12 April 2022. The Group recorded a
revenue of merely HK$2.6 million in this quarter,
representing a significant drop in revenue of 68% from
the previous quarter and a drop of 35% from the last
corresponding period.

As compensation and support for the different sectors
affected by the tightened social distancing measures, the
HK Govt launched the fifth and sixth round of the
Anti-epidemic Fund. The Group’s restaurants were
entitled to a total sum of HK$1.35 million in respect of
the Catering Business (Social Distancing) Subsidy Scheme
under these two rounds of funding.

Property Development in Australia

The property development project in Australia
commenced from March 2020 and completed in
October 2021. A project control team had been set up
to oversee and monitor the marketing and construction
progress. Following the issue of the occupation
certificate for the apartment block end of October 2021,
the Group recognised property development income of
approximately A$12.9 (HK$74.0 million equivalent) and
cost of sales of approximately A$11.5 (HK$66.3 million
equivalent) accordingly. The profit margin was
approximately A$1.4 million (HK$7.7 million equivalent).
As of 31 March 2022, all 26 apartments were sold, out
of which 25 apartments had completed settlement.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
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The Group’s bank and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$31.7 million as at 31 March 2022. As
the Group had no bank borrowings, the Group’s gearing
ratio was zero (defined as total bank borrowings divided
by total assets) as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March
2021.

The Group obtained loan facilities on 1 February 2021 of
HK$40.0 million from its ultimate parent, Kong Fai
International Limited, which bear interest at a rate of
5% per annum. On 1 September 2021, the loan facilities
were increased to HK$50.0 million. During the year
ended 31 March 2022, the total sum drawn down by
the Group was approximately HK$43.0 million (31
March 2021: HK$20.0 million), with accrued loan
interests of approximately HK$1.0 million (31 March
2021: HK$0.1 million). The loans and accrued interest
amounted to HK$44.1 million were fully repaid in
October 2021.

With the cash generated from the Group’s operations in
its ordinary course of business and the existing unutilised
banking and credit facilities, the Directors consider that
the Group has sufficient working capital for its
operations.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

B AEEEEREEER Z KD #H
S EKEBAMRBITRASERYAET
B ASEEHZINERR TBRER
MZMEZERER  HERBIRS &
ENMBBEANNRTIE EEEETYE
RZERR YTEATEREEZEUHE
ROMNE R

2021/22 Annual Report %

Most of the Group’s sales, purchases, bank and cash
balances from the restaurant operations are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group is
exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through its
property development operations in Australia as the
relevant transactions, assets, liabilities and bank balances
are denominated in Australian dollar. The management
would closely monitor such risk and would consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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As at 31 March 2022, the Group had approximately 90
staff. Total staff costs including directors’ emoluments
amounted to approximately HK$19.2 million (31 March
2021: HK$18.7 million) for the year under review.

Review of the employees’ remuneration packages is
normally conducted annually and as required from time
to time. The salary and benefit levels of the Group’'s
employees are competitive and individual performance is
rewarded through the Group’s bonus scheme. Other
benefits including medical coverage and mandatory
provident fund scheme are also provided to employees.

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY
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The Group strives to generate positive return to preserve
values of shareholders through its sustainable business
development. For the Group’s traditional business, the
Group would try to seek growth and higher returns by
offering more innovative products or services to
customers, to implement more stringent cost control and
to apply and manage resources as effectively as possible.
In order to further enhance the value of the Group and
to achieve higher returns to the shareholders, the longer
term approach is to expand the income source through
business diversification. The aim is to maximise the
overall returns to shareholders in the long run by
identifying and selecting new business opportunities
which are of great potential and include them in the
Group's existing business portfolio.
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The restaurant business will continue to serve as our
core operation. However, the operating environment for
the Group's restaurant operation remains challenging.
The Group has to monitor the dynamic COVID-19
situation closely and adapt to the ever-changing health,
social, political and economic climate. For the restaurant
business, the Group’s strategy is to concentrate on
operating medium-sized restaurants while achieving
efficient risk management. It will also adopt a more
cautious approach in future expansion plan as well as in
committing further capital expenditure. The Group will
continue to seek investment opportunities in property
development projects both in Hong Kong and in
Australia. The diversification into this segment will give
the Group ample opportunities to acquire additional
source of income and a positive return to the Group and
its shareholders.
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The Board acknowledges the importance and benefits of
good corporate governance and strives to manage the
Company and the business in accordance with the
guidelines of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) for effective corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, fairness, integrity
and accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
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The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as its own corporate
governance code. The Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2022 except for code provision A.2.1
(which has been renumbered as C.2.1 since 1 January
2022) in respect of the role separation of the chairman
and the chief executive; code provision A.4.1 (which has
been deleted from the Code since 1 January 2022) in
respect of the service term of non-executive directors
(“"NEDs"”) and code provision D1.4 (which has been
renumbered as C.3.3 since 1 January 2022) in respect of
the letters of appointment for directors.

Code provision D.1.4 sets out that issuers should have
formal letters of appointment for directors setting out
the key terms and conditions of their appointment. The
Company did not have formal letters of appointment for
certain directors. All of the directors of the Company
are, however, required to refer to the guidelines set out
in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the
Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors” and
“Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in
performing their duties and responsibilities as directors
of the Company. In the opinion of the directors, this
meets the objective of the code provision D.1.4.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code"”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors. Following specific enquiry
by the Company, all the directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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The Board currently comprises four executive directors
and three independent non-executive directors
("INEDs"):

Executive Directors

CHENG Hop Fai (Chairman and Managing Director)
CHENG Pak Ming, Judy

CHENG Pak Man, Anita

CHENG Pak Lai, Lily

Independent Non-Executive Directors

LEUNG Tai Chiu (resigned on 23 June 2021)

LAW Toe Ming

HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew

YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny (appointed on 23 June 2021)

With effect from 23 June 2021, Mr. Leung Tai Chiu
resigned and Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong Johnny was
appointed as an INED.

Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita
and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily are sisters and are daughters
of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, the chairman and managing
director. Save as aforesaid, the Board members have no
financial, business, family or other material relationship
with each other.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

21



22

EEE (E)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

B E202293A3MALFE KRB BT
TRREEEEER—RBERKE - &L

EFgREBZEALFEERAOT

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there were six
Board meetings and one general meeting held.
Individual attendance of each of the Board members is
as follows:

HE =
Attendance
ExEg BREXE
Board General
E=pnE Name of Director Meeting Meeting
25 1 CHENG Hop Fai 3/6 1/1
2 = B3 CHENG Pak Ming, Judy 3/6 1/1
RS CHENG Pak Man, Anita 3/6 1/1
EEE CHENG Pak Lai, Lily 3/6 1/1
REEHR LEUNG Tai Chiu
(FA2021%F6 A23H B {E) (resigned on 23 June 2021) 3/3 N/A
#BH LAW Toe Ming 6/6 11
HER HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew 6/6 1/1
RAE YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny
(FA2021F6 A23BE LR T) (appointed on 23 June 2021) 4/4 1/1
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The members of the Board are experienced individuals
having a mix of core competencies in areas of accounting
and finance, business management, industry knowledge
and marketing strategies. The directors are collectively
responsible for formulating and implementing the
Group’s strategies and policies, monitoring the
performance of the Group and reviewing the corporate
governance practices. The mix of professional skills and
experience of the INEDs is an important element in the
proper functioning of the Board. Their participation in
Board and committee meetings brings independent

judgment and helps to ensure that adequate checks and

balances are provided and that the interests of all
shareholders are taken into account. Directors have full
access to appropriate business documents and
information about the Group on a timely basis. The
Directors can also obtain independent professional
advice at the Group’s expense if they require it. The
Board delegates the day-to-day operation and
administration to the management.
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The Company has complied with rules 3.10(1) and (2) of
the Listing Rules in maintaining at all times sufficient
number of INEDs on the Board including an INED with
professional accounting and financial qualifications. The
Company has complied with rule 3.10A since 1
December 2012 and has INEDs representing at least
one-third of the Board. The Company considers all of
the INEDs are independent and has received from each
INED an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL REPORTING
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The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements of the Group that
give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial
position and are in accordance with applicable
accounting standards and statutory rules and guidelines.
The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue on a
going concern basis. The Company has also received a
statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
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The Board recognizes its overall responsibility for the
establishment, maintenance and review of the risk
management and internal control systems that provide
reasonable assurance on the reliability and integrity of
financial and operational information, effective and
efficient operations, safeguarding of assets and
compliance with laws and regulations. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

23



24

Corporate Governance Report

2

o 3 B T B BE 4 (%

i

)

.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)
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The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are based on a set of policies, rules and
guidelines as outlined in the Group’s internal control
manual and governed by the following types of control
principles:

a. Organization — to have clearly defined line of
responsibility and delegation

b. Segregation of duties - to reduce risk of
intentional manipulation or error

C. Physical Control — to restrict unauthorized access
to all kinds of assets

d. Authorization and approval — to have clearly
defined limits for authorizations

e. Arithmetical and accounting — to ensure accuracy
of transactional records

f. Personnel — to have qualified staff to perform
day-to-day duties

g. Supervision — to observe and closely monitor, to
identify and report on control weaknesses

h. Management — to maintain overall controls; to
manage and mitigate significant risks and to
highlight significant matters to the Board and the
audit committee

The Company has adopted the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission as its own guidelines in handling
and dissemination of inside information. Unauthorized
use of confidential information is strictly prohibited.

The Board through the executive management team, the
internal control team and the audit committee had
conducted an annual review on the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and
considered that the systems in place are adequate and
effective.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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Code provision A.2.1 (which has been renumbered as
C.2.1 since 1 January 2022) sets out that the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
Currently, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai assumes the role of both
the chairman and the managing director (equivalent to
the role of a chief executive) of the Company. The Board
considers that such arrangement will not result in undue
concentration of power and is, at this stage, conducive
to the efficient formulation and implementation of the
Group’s strategies thus allowing the Group to develop
its business more effectively.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
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Code provision A.4.1 (which has been deleted from the
Code since 1 January 2022) stipulates that NEDs should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Some INEDs are not appointed for a specific term. This
constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1.
However, as all the INEDs are subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meetings of the Company
at least once every three years in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws, in the opinion of the directors, this
meets the objective of the code provision A.4.1. The
code provision A.4.1 was deleted from the new
Corporate Governance Code which became effective
from 1 January 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING
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Code provision A.6.5 (which has been renumbered as
C.1.4 since 1 January 2022) stipulates that all directors
should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Company had
received from each of the directors a record of training
they received during the year ended 31 March 2022. A

summary of such training is listed as follows:

Name of Director

Executive Director

CHENG Hop Fai
CHENG Pak Ming, Judy
CHENG Pak Man, Anita
CHENG Pak Lai, Lily

Independent Non-Executive Director

LEUNG Tai Chiu (resigned on 23 June 2021)
LAW Toe Ming
HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew
YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny
(appointed on 23 June 2021)

kil
Type of
training

>>> >

> > >

A

i

0 W W W

o W @

B

A:  Attending training courses and/or seminars, conferences,

workshops or forums

B:  Reading journals and updates relevant to the Company’s

business or directors’ duties and responsibilities
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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The Company has established a remuneration committee
since 14 July 2005. The principal function of the
remuneration committee is to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of executive
directors, NEDs and senior management. The terms of
reference of the remuneration committee adopted on 23
March 2012 are consistent with the code provisions set
out in the Code. During the year ended 31 March 2022,
the remuneration committee comprised three INEDs,
namely Mr. Law Toe Ming as chairman, Mr. Leung Tat
Chiu (resigned on 23 June 2021), Mr. Hung Chi Yuen,
Andrew and Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong Johnny (appointed
on 23 June 2021) as members. Mr. Leung Tai Chiu
ceased to be a member following his resignation as INED
on 23 June 2021. During the year ended 31 March
2021, the remuneration committee held one meeting to

BIgRE  MEESREER SHFWHE review and make recommendations to the Board on the
BB ZEAALBEBEROT remuneration packages of the directors with reference
to the level of responsibilities of the individual director,
the scope of operation of the Group as well as the
prevailing market conditions. Individual attendance of

each remuneration committee member is as follows:
FHEEERBEHRE Name of i E =
remuneration committee member Attendance
EEWH(FE) LAW Toe Ming (Chairman) 1/1
R EEHE (F2021F6 A23H B F) LEUNG Tat Chiu (resigned on 23 June 2021) N/A
HEER HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew 11

RAZE(R2021F6 230 EE ) YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny

(appointed on 23 June 2021) 11
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The Company established a nomination committee on
23 March 2012. The principal function of the
nomination committee is to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board at least annually
with reference to the business needs and development
of the Company and make recommendations to the
Board on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s corporate strategy. The
nomination committee has a policy concerning the
diversity of Board members (the “Policy”). Pursuant to
the Policy, in reviewing the Board’s diversity, the Board
will consider including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. New directors, being individuals who are suitably
qualified and expected to make a positive contribution
to the performance of the Board and having regards to
the criteria stated in the Policy, will be identified and
submitted to the Board or shareholders for approval
either to fill vacancies on the Board or to be appointed
as additional directors. The terms of reference of the
nomination committee are consistent with the code
provisions set out in the Code. During the year ended
31 March 2022, the nomination committee comprised
the chairman and an executive director, Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai, who acts as the chairman of the nomination
committee and the two INEDs, namely, Mr. Law Toe
Ming and Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew as members.
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the nomination
committee held one meeting to review the composition
and diversity of the Board as well as to assess the
independence of the INED who offered himself for
re-election at the annual general meeting. Since the
Board is composed of members having a mix of core
competencies in areas of accounting and finance,
business management, industry knowledge and
marketing strategies, the nomination committee
considered the Board possessed a diversity of
perspectives which is up to the standard of the Code
and was appropriate to the Group’s requirements.
Individual attendance of each of the nomination
committee members is as follows:
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REZES (&) NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

BREZESERKENRSR Name of W pE

nomination committee member Attendance

BBEE(F/E) CHENG Hop Fai (Chairman) 1/1

B LAW Toe Ming 11

HEER HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew 1/1

BEREES AUDIT COMMITTEE

RKABBHI99FUR—BEFXREEZEZE The Company has established an audit committee since

@ o EILEE® T EBERTE: 1999. The primary functions of the audit committee

include:

(@ HEE EFZELERZHAME (@) To make recommendations on the appointment,
HERVEBEBBZIE KK reappointment and removal of auditor and to

consider the terms of such appointments;

(b) WA RERZEAI 2B I B (b)  To review and monitor the auditor’s independence;
EBREMEBBE I ZEENIRHIERX to develop and implement policies on the
BARTS 2 BUR engagement of auditor for non-audit services;

() EEREI AR  FHRMETH®RE X () To monitor the integrity of the financial
HHEIRE BT Bl AEEH statements, annual and interim reports and the
Z % Ka s R R BB A ERZ auditor’s report; to review the Group's financial
EERNEBN AT R AER 2 and accounting policies and practices and to
B EAROR ensure that the information presents a true and

fair assessment of the Group’s financial position;

d) ®BEAEEZPBEEE - RRERE (d)  To review the Group’s financial controls, risk
NASERRG : MEREEAER management and internal control systems; to
ERTERHEAMNZGZHBRELE ensure management has fulfilled its duty to have
e MBS A B EEYETN RE 2 B AU effective systems and to review and monitor the

effectiveness of the internal audit function;

() FHREELERZEZR AEREAE (e)  To consider major investigation findings on risk

AREREENAMEEEECESR
HEFERLEEBHZTHEER
ZEE K

T R A% BRAD 2 B TR R 4 N A% BRAD @)
ERABRBZEMHEBE ARE
BABZEE-
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management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative
and management’s response to these findings;
and

To review the auditor's management letter and
any questions raised by the auditor to management,
and management’s response.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

29



30

BEREES (H)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

S

201263 H23H Mz EXE B
EE e RS %E/ETE'JZ?EM%
i2022¢3H31E¢¢§ EZEEB
=R BILIEMITE E AT Eﬂz BiEHE
%@%Iﬁmzoz@ﬁw EERT)
BEPRLENTBE LA (FR2021F6 8
23534%;1{)7%}%;0/ BEHR ST A 52021
FeA2HBIBIYIERNTEER TH
EETE-

0

|
SFe 0 {31 TR

>t
g

he . B
i

C

HE20229F3A31HIEFE FEXLE=
BRTMIAEE THESHAEREBRZXH
fM—REMEXER PR FEHBER
%ELA&$’EIFJ’T%T<4NZ R B R o
EZEEGEREETTEM2021/222%F
BSR4 MR - X%ﬁ?%ﬁm\zm}\
HEBRIT :

The terms of reference of the audit committee adopted
on 23 March 2012 are consistent with the code
provisions set out in the Code. During the year ended
31 March 2022, the audit committee comprised three
INEDs namely, Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew (appointed
on 23 June 2021) as chairman, Mr. Law Toe Ming and
Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong Johnny (appointed on 23 June
2021) as members. Mr. Leung Tai Chiu ceased to be the
chairman following his resignation as an INED on 23
June 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the audit
committee held two meetings and has reviewed with
senior management and the auditor their respective
audit findings, the interim and annual financial
statements and the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. The audit committee
recommended the Board to adopt the interim and
annual reports for 2021/22. Individual attendance of
each member of the audit committee is as follows:

ERZEERENSB Name of &
audit committee member Attendance
RRERR(F/E) LEUNG Tai Chiu (Chairman) N/A
(7202156 A23H BHT) (resigned on 23 June 2021)
HER(FE) HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew (Chairman)

(R2021F6 A23B EZ 1) (appointed on 23 June 2021) 2/2
B LAW Toe Ming 2/2
RIBE YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny

(72021 F6 A23HEZ(T) (appointed on 23 June 2021) 2/2
ZE AN 2B € AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
HZE202F3A31B L HEE AR The remuneration payable in respect of the year ended
FIREMAEREER (58 €t ER 31 March 2022 for audit and non-audit services

PR~ A N H At~ B ) 2% 5 [ 52 Az 21
RIFZBRBEN BT

provided to the Group by the Company’s auditor, PKF
Hong Kong Limited and other firms, is as follows:

AT LA

Amount in HKD'000

ZEE A Audit Fees 504
EZHER Non-Audit Fees

(rEAEE=EEREEER) (princpally for accounts review and taxation

services) 123

627

RERTBLE R E T BHERE TER The statement made by the auditor in respect of their

REWR 7 E545638 o

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

reporting responsibilities is set out on pages 54 to 63 of
this annual report.

2021/22 Annual Report £k



PERERWE
Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
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The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:-

(@ To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) To review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of directors
and senior management;

(0 To review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and directors; and

()  To review the Company’s compliance with the
Code and its disclosure requirements in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s polices and
practices on corporate governance practices and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
including compliance with the Code for the year ended
31 March 2022.

COMPANY SECRETARY

AABHITESEAR LT - 5200652
A178B#8  —EHEAARRRZARMWE - &
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FHRAEEER RIBIZHEE -
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Ms. Cheng Pak Ming Judy, an executive director of the
Company, has been the company secretary of the
Company since 17 February 2006. Ms. Cheng complied
with the qualification and training requirements under
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2022.
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Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders are encouraged to maintain direct
communication with the Company. Shareholders who
have any questions for the Board may write directly to
the company secretary at the Company’s Hong Kong
principal place of business, Unit 108, 1st Floor, East
Ocean Centre, 98 Granville Road, Tsimshatsui East,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, or send emails to info@g-vision.
com.hk. The company secretary will direct the questions
to the Board.

Any questions regarding the shareholdings of the
shareholders can be addressed directly to the Company’'s
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong.

Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general
meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings if they are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be
monitored and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if
necessary, changes will be made to ensure that
shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, either the chairman of
Board committees or their delegates, appropriate
management executives and external auditor will attend
annual general meetings to answer shareholders’
questions.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
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Shareholders’ Meetings (Continued)

Should shareholders wish to call a special general
meeting, it must be convened according to the
Company’s Bye-laws. In summary:

(a) Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company can, in
writing to the Board or the company secretary,
request a special general meeting to be called by
the Board to transact any business specified in
such request.

(b)  The signed written request, which should specify
the purpose of the meeting, should be delivered
to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong. The meeting will be held within two
months after receipt of the request. If the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting within
twenty-one days after receiving the request, the

K& o shareholders themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
REERHZ INVESTOR RELATIONS
BEETH Constitutional Documents
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There was no significant change to the Company’s
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws (“Constitutional
Documents”) during the year ended 31 March 2022. A
latest version of the Constitutional Documents can be
downloaded from the websites of the Company or the
Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, aged 78, appointed as a director
on 12 June 1992, is the chairman and managing director
of the Company and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheng is one
of the founders of the Group and has over 30 years’
experience in the restaurant business. He has been
instrumental in the formulation and implementation of
the business policies of the Group and is responsible for
the general management and strategic planning of the
Group. Mr. Cheng is also a director of Golden Toy
Investments Limited (“Golden Toy”) and Kong Fai
International Limited (“Kong Fai”) which own approximately
8.88% and 65.62%, respectively, of the issued shares of
the Company. Mr. Cheng is the father of Ms. Cheng Pak
Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng
Pak Lai, Lily who are all executive directors of the
Company.

Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, aged 51, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 25
September 1992. She was also appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 17 February
2006. Ms. Cheng is a daughter of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai
and a sister of Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily. She holds a Bachelor degree in
Economics from the University of Sydney and a Master
of Commerce degree from the University of New South
Wales, Sydney. She is a Certified Practising Accountant
of CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is
responsible for the financial and company secretarial
functions of the Group.
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Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita, aged 50, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 30
September 2004. Ms. Cheng is a daughter of Mr. Cheng
Hop Fai and a sister of Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily. She holds a Bachelor of
Commerce degree from the University of New South
Wales, Sydney and a Master of Applied Finance degree
from Macquarie University, Sydney. She is a Certified
Practising Accountant of CPA Australia and a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Cheng has worked in the
investment banking and accounting fields in Hong Kong
for over 5 years. She is responsible for the business
development, marketing and strategic planning
functions of the Group.

Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, aged 49, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 1 April 2011.
Ms. Cheng is a daughter of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai and a
sister of Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy and Ms. Cheng Pak
Man, Anita. She joined the Group in 2006. Ms. Cheng is
responsible for the administration, financial and strategic
planning functions of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Cheng had extensive finance and accounting
experiences in multinational audit firm, investment bank
and a renowned chemical company. She holds a
Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of
New South Wales, Sydney and is a Certified Practising
Accountant of CPA Australia.
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Directors and Senior Management

BYFHTES

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
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Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, aged 76, was appointed as an
INED on 11 August 2011. Following his resignation as
an INED on 23 June 2021, he ceased to be the chairman
and a member of the audit committee and a member of
the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Leung
graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1969.
Mr. Leung is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He has over 30 years
of experience in accounting and auditing sectors and
had been an audit partner in international renowned
accounting firms for 20 years. In 2005, Mr. Leung
retired from PricewaterhouseCoopers. Mr. Leung was
the president of Lions Club of Victoria in 1986 and 1998
and a director of Yan Qi Tong from 1995 to 1997. He is
a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Leung also served as an independent non-executive
director of other companies listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, namely Eva
Precision Industrial Holdings Limited up to 1 July 2020;
Kingboard Holdings Limited up to 31 October 2020 and
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited up to 7 June
2021.

Mr. Law Toe Ming, aged 80, was appointed as an INED
on 1 December 1994. He is the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company and a member
of the audit committee and nomination committee of
the Company. Mr. Law has over 40 years’ experience in
business management. He is a director of Texful Textile
Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)
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Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew, aged 53, was appointed
as an INED and a member of the Company’s
remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee on 18 June 2019. He was appointed as
the chairman of the audit committee on 23 June 2021.
Mr. Hung is currently the director of Norton Rowland
CPA Limited. He received his professional training in
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu during the period from 1991
to 1993 and had worked in UBS Investment Bank as
business unit controller for seven years. Mr. Hung holds
a Bachelor’s Degree of Arts (Hons) in Accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a Master's
Degree in Applied Finance from University of Western
Sydney. He is a practising Certified Public Accountant, a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Hung is currently
an independent non-executive director of FDG Kinetic
Limited (stock code: 378) and AKM Industrial Company
Limited (stock code: 1639), all of which are listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Mr. YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny, aged 49, was
appointed as an INED and a member of the Company’s
remuneration committee and audit committee on 23
June 2021. Mr. Yuen began his career in KPMG and has
over 25 years of experiences in financial management,
accounting, auditing and administration. He held various
senior positions in other listed companies in Hong Kong
before joining IRC Limited (stock code: 1029) which is
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Yuen is currently the Company
Secretary, the Acting Chief Financial Officer and
Authorised Representative of IRC Limited. Mr. Yuen did
not hold any directorship in other listed companies in
the last three years. Mr. Yuen holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Manchester Business
School of University of Manchester and is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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Report of the Directors

EEENIEEHZ202FE3A31B ILEE
ZERMEBIZTIEREK -

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

ARBB—RREEZERAT - HE LA
ZEBEBTINEBLEFPHREBMN K
Z BB A R ORI E I E

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
principal subsidiaries are engaged in the operations of
restaurants in Hong Kong which specialise in Chiu Chow
Cuisine as well as property development in Australia.

RESULTS

REBMBEZE2022F3A31BIEFE 2 ¥4
HBEHIINFEAZSE Z AR A
EEWEERA

EFEQC@ARTEFAIRFEE2022F3A7
1A IEFEZ AR R (202145 : &) -

3oy

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 64 to
65 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022
(2021: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

RBEEB R AEAE622% (R KM M
RAZBRMYAEEXBELZTE
EEUNMHAREREREFARR 2w A
- EFERARERSZEIERARET
PARRZEARERKTBEAEZERD
HERAFR TREHREREEETiwm R
DMBEET - AEREZHHRAREERZ
EBREEREETBRRIMEE - ZF
AmAAEFTERE LD o BREIK
FEZHEREARANE 2 RRRIRE -
HEMERBRETAEHFEBEZ D -

BFHBEERER

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as a
discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year as required by schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong
Kong) including a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and a discussion of the
Group's likely future development can be found in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report. The financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group are
shown in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
Those discussions form part of this report of the
directors. The environmental, social and governance
report of the Company to be published within five
months after the end of the financial year shall also
form part of the business review.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

REBEFER  BEZREEBMRM X
SEYESERERITETHAEENE
BREEAERTENEREARIER -
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During the year under review, as far as the Board and
the management are aware, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

AEEEREHLRE TP RHEBRE
RIFBAEUZEIEEHARARRZER
H-NOEFEAN AEEEERES &
FRhHrmzEHBRERERERMUD -

FEHEEREF

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers to meet its immediate and long-term business
goals. During the year under review, there were no
material and significant disputes between the Group and
its employees, customers or suppliers.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

IAKBEBEBEBME  ZARIAHEE
BRRBEINEEERNFEZRE
B17%K43% - MAKBAKREF 2 8K
ABMEAEBERBEZBEBZRATE
30% °

BEAMEERHEZ EAWRAL
B B A (A AR B RAS% N L
ZEMBRE)  REAGRERETHEEET
3k -

BREHRRREXR

For the Group’s restaurant operations, the aggregate
purchases attributable to the largest supplier and five
largest suppliers of the Group were 17% and 43%,
respectively, of the Group’s purchases for the year. The
aggregate revenue attributable to the five largest
customers of the Group was less than 30% of the
Group's revenue for the year from restaurant operations.

None of the directors, their respective close associates
nor any shareholder, (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital), has an interest in any of the five largest
suppliers of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

ARAARERRR NG FEH
R-AEBZNBTEBRBRRONERZX
B EERBAAEMNIRREE  NERED
MERRITENABREREZRET -

M- BEREE

The Company is committed to the sustainable development
of the environment and the society. The Group has
endeavoured to comply with the laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and adopted
effective environmental practices to ensure the business
meet the required standards and ethics in respect of
environmental protection.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

REET MY BERRERENZ S
HIED BN A M REN 18 o

B

Details of the movement of property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

AREBRBBEEER @ 28 1EL &= BE
(20214 : 6,000/87T) °
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During the year under review, there was no charitable
donation made by the Group (2021: HK$6,000).
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SHARE CAPITAL

KARIRA 2 S EBFIBEHIN NGRS MK
HFRMIFE28 o

=E

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital
are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

RAFERBEARENNEAHR 2 ERE
FWT

BITES:
BB (T EREFHLHE)
LIS

P EEHE (FA202145F6 A23B BHE)
72 E AR
ST

Zaas)

RAPE(R2021F6A23BHEZT)

F;E

UiEE VNN NEIABIEST()E - B A 1E
e Eﬁaéaﬁi&/,w R LS HRE
BRI MEREHEERTESNERRE

BFERE LBEEET-

RREZETCEFHEREAQRNEL
ISR RIR] AR SE AR E i E O

EMERIN)  BRTER-—FAKLEZ

RIGEH -
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The directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

CHENG Hop Fai (Chairman and Managing Director)
CHENG Pak Ming, Judy

CHENG Pak Man, Anita

CHENG Pak Lai, Lily

Independent non-executive directors:

LEUNG Tai Chiu (resigned on 23 June 2021)

LAW Toe Ming

HUNG Chi Yuen, Andrew

YUEN Shiu Cheong, Johnny (appointed on 23 June 2021)

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily
and Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew will retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election has a
service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

R2022F3A31H ARRMEZTEER=E
BITBABRBEEZHBEALTREARG R
HEMBBEEFFE KRG - HERND
MEFEZRQBREESRBPEEH ([F
A NMEIE GG EXVELET7 R85 2 m A
GARRR) R _JZb)/,JFETJf?m%&HE
BB ZE35216 1 B A RZ IR SRl 2 &

A s sk(c )/,ﬁE%FH%*“ﬁﬁLm%ﬁﬁumiﬁo
T8z EMBETAESTETESFRH2IZ
EFAIMAE AR RBRZF#BOT

As at 31 March 2022, the interests of the directors and
the chief executive and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"); or (b) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

o=y Long positions
(1) MARANTGREEIETE KR (1) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
= of the Company:
RN
BERITRAZ
BAES T
BEEERT Approximate
EEREE percentage of
BORERMEE Number of issued the issued
EEnA Capacity and ordinary share capital
Name of director nature of interest shares held  of the Company
geE ExEAA 6,900,000 0.35%
Cheng Hop Fai Beneficial owner
geE ErEX @A (fita) 1,450,037,841 74.50%
Cheng Hop Fai Beneficiary of trusts (note a)
gHH X EA (Hita) 1,450,037,841 74.50%
Cheng Pak Ming, Judy Beneficiary of trusts (note a)
gAK X EA (Hita) 1,450,037,841 74.50%
Cheng Pak Man, Anita Beneficiary of trusts (note a)
gaE X EA (Hita) 1,450,037,841 74.50%
Cheng Pak Lai, Lily Beneficiary of trusts (note a)
ZEH RS ¥ 2 s (Hatb) 2,000,000 0.10%
Law Toe Ming Interest of controlled corporation

(note b)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

e (#E)
(1) RARREFREE.1VETEBRZ
e (E)

X

(a) Golden Toy Investments Limited
(I'Golden Toyl) & Kong Fai
International Limited ([Kong Fail)
DRFAEARRNTZ172,869,780
i B 1 (£8.88% # =) &
1,277,168,06 1A% A& 17 (5465.62%
#%5) ° Golden Toy} Kong Fai Jb
HME2EEXEERE  ZME
BERZEHAABEBEECR
TREKE - BREBEEEL  BHHA
Zt BEGXTERBABEL T -

(b) 7 58 A %k & M Jubilee Trade
Holdings Limited ([Jubilee ]) ¥ 4&
2 W &5 T #1823 702,000,000/ %
DR RER

2) BEEZHR:

A A F2010F5 4108 H 4 2 B
R&#E 5T 2l ([ 201051 1) 7202045
F8H E|H#f - /K A A 202048 A3
HROZBREBFRG EERER
FHBBEMF A ERETE (12020
&I 22010518 - #EFE(5H &) -
Br IEARIK20205T 81 T 2 6 IR T
®It AR EI Z BN EHE
£2030F8A3H A1 - :HEI 25 1B
EERERA M RRMIFE3 -

Long positions (Continued)

(1) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
of the Company: (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Golden Toy Investments Limited (“Golden Toy")
and Kong Fai International Limited (“Kong Fai”)
held 172,869,780 shares (or 8.88% interest) and
1,277,168,061 shares (or 65.62% interest) of the
Company, respectively. Golden Toy and Kong Fai
are wholly-owned by two discretionary trusts of
which family members of Mr. Cheng Hop Fai,
including Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming,
Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng

Pak Lai, Lily are discretionary objects.

(b) Mr. Law Toe Ming is deemed to be interested in the
2,000,000 shares held by Jubilee Trade Holdings
Limited (“Jubilee”) by virtue of his interest in

Jubilee.

(2) Long positions in share options:

The Company adopted a share option scheme on
10 May 2010 (the “2010 Scheme") which expired
on 8 May 2020. By shareholders’ resolution
passed at the annual general meeting held on 3
August 2020, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the “2020 Scheme”, and,
together with the 2010 Scheme, the “Schemes”).
Unless terminated earlier in accordance with the
rules of the 2020 Scheme, the 2020 Scheme shall
be valid and effective until 3 August 2030.
Particulars of the Schemes are set out in note 31
to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,

EExphoER(E) UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

e (&) Long positions (Continued)

(2) BREZFE: (8) (2)  Long positions in share options: (Continued)

HZE20229F3A31HIEFE - BiE
20105T8I I FHERERF A A - 28
fere - HEEEHFEBHI AT -

Details of movements in the share options granted
to the directors under the 2010 Scheme for the
year ended 31 March 2022 are set out below:

BREXE
Number of share options
®20215F #2022
4818 RERIET 3A31H
BRERSEA RHAH TE# BROHE KT E i ESEd
Expired/
Exercise Outstanding granted  Outstanding
price as at during as at
Director Date of grant  Exercisable period per share 1.4.2021 the year 31.3.2022
LIy 2017%10A238  2017F10A238 %
2025%10A22H HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Cheng Hop Fai 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025
LISL 2017%10A238 2017510238 %
20256104226 HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Cheng Pak Ming, Judy 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025
L=l 2017108238 2017F10A236%
2025F10A22H HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Cheng Pak Man, Anita 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025
g0E 2017%10A238  2017%10A238%
2025F10A22H HK$0.177 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Cheng Pak Lai, Lily 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025
R 2017104238 2017F10A23A%
2025104228 HK$0.177 2,000,000®  (2,000,000) -
Leung Tai Chiu 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025
EEH 2017104238 2017F10A236%
20256108228 HK$0.177 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
Law Toe Ming 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025
FRE 2017%10A238  2017F10A238%
2025108226 HK$0.177 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
Mark Yiu Tong, William ~ 23.10.2017 23.10.2017 -
22.10.2025
30,000,000 (2,000,000) 28,000,000

2021/22 Annual Report %

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHNEREEERAR

43



44

EERRE
Report of the Directors

EENRM - HERD R
B zEm ()

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

#R (&)
2 BhEzHgrR: (&)

Hit -

(a) RBEFR A A20215F6 A23H B {E
BYEMITES c HiFH 2 HERE
REBE -

(b) BIRE S A H2019F6 180 i &
ABLIERTE SV E(TRER -

Br b X FT# 58 & S - 1R2022F3 R
318 MEARREEREZITHK
ABABRBESKHE KRG FEXVE
FIRSHHBWEESIHERABERAR
AREEMEEEE 25 - HE
BHPKELEPHEB T EMERK
KA (BRBEESRBEGHE
XVEBSET7 &85 By A& AN 1A &) K B
AT k(o) BIRIEE H K EE &G
FE35216 1M A KA FI ATt 2 B &
i (OB RBEZEETRIMAE
ZAN/NYSTINg oy s i

BARGEESF 2L H

Long positions (Continued)

(2)

Long positions in share options: (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Mr. Leung Tai Chiu resigned as an INED on 23 June
2021 and his share options lapsed following his

resignation.

(b) Mr. Mark Yiu Tong, William resigned as an INED
and was redesignated as a consultant with effect
from 18 June 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022,
none of the directors and the chief executive of
the Company was, under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO, taken to be interested or deemed
to have any other interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations which (a)
would have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO, or (b) which were required
to be entered into the register referred to therein
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or (c) which
were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

B EXCPTIREE 2 B AR SN - AR EAE(A
SN DS SR Ty = PN 2
NE R EHAEAME AR RS ER %
B BEARREZRAEBARRBSE
A E A ANE 2 B HESF M

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

Other than the options disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or holding company, or any subsidiary of its holding
company, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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FERR SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

BmETEER EXHEE2ERZN R Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
2022 3H31H AR REBEESNEE certain directors, as at 31 March 2022, the register of
IEHIE36IEFEZ T ERRELMER - substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
THIATEMERAT  HRANAF D pursuant to section 336 of the SFO indicated that the
TRAFR 2 BEEZR AR  WAREF following persons had notified the Company of interests
H NS GO EXVED F2 X35 & M 1E i or short positions in the issued share capital of the
B - Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

He Long positions
AARBREEONB T @A : Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company:
HARREE
FrEEZE BITRAZH
£ SREEME BRITEBEREE FINER
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the issued
Capacity and issued ordinary share capital
Name nature of interest shares held of the Company
Golden Toy BERHEE A
Golden Toy Beneficial owner 172,869,780@ 8.88%
Kong Fai EmEA A
Kong Fai Beneficial owner 1,277,168,061@ 65.62%
Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited BN
Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited Trustee of trusts 1,450,037,841@ 74.50%
Alpadis Group Holding AG Rl E s #Ea
Alpadis Group Holding AG Interest of controlled corporation  1,450,037,841® 74.50%
Alain Esseiva R E s s
Alain Esseiva Interest of controlled corporation 1,450,037,841© 74.50%
Dominik Philipp Heer REHEE 2 ER
Dominik Philipp Heer Interest of controlled corporation 1,450,037,841© 74.50%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

e (#)
wiit

(a) BEIZBFLBEGRD FEFLARE2ER
st 8 7 (¥ B Golden ToyXKong Faiz
100%#3) 2 55 A * Alpadis Trust (HK)
Limited# 18 A Golden ToyMKong Faifft
SHEZEEAR 2MEF1,450,037,8411 i
AR -

(b) Alpadis Group Holding AG (BT & AAlpadis
Group Holding SA) Fia 2 ARl X ER R
BAMELEEEREZE S RBEROE KRR

Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited$ & 2 ## & M %

18 /PA1,450,037,84 1R AR 10 R HE B A 25 o

(0) Alain Esseiva&Dominik Philipp HeerfF %
ZEAFERFBEBNELREREZS KX
HA = 160 B 1% = 7 Alpadis Group Holding
AGHs B 2 HE & i B4R /3 501,450,037,841
AR A& 10 R HE B HE %R o

B EXPTREEESN  MEFEMA - 12022
FIA3MAE AEEAEMALTRARA]
Z Bty SRR A An R 2 (R S SR R
ARRANR AR L RIEES NS G
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Long positions (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited is deemed under the SFO to have
an interest in the same 1,450,037,841 shares, in aggregate,
beneficially owned by Golden Toy and Kong Fai by virtue of
it being the trustee of two discretionary trusts which own
100% of the shares of Golden Toy and Kong Fai.

(b) The corporate substantial shareholder notice filed by
Alpadis Group Holding AG (formerly known as Alpadis
Group Holding SA) indicated that it is deemed to be
interested in the 1,450,037,841 shares under the SFO by
virtue of its interest held in Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited.

(0) The individual substantial shareholder notice filed by Alain
Esseiva and Dominik Philipp Heer indicated that they are
deemed to be interested in the 1,450,037,841 shares under
the SFO by virtue of their interests held in Alpadis Group
Holding AG.

Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of
any other persons who, as at 31 March 2022, had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that were required to be entered
into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all of the INEDs are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a)
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(a)

The Group has leased from Homley Development
Limited (“Homley”) certain properties for the
Group’s restaurant operations since 6 May 2002.

On 4 May 2020, the Group renewed the tenancy
agreement with Homley for a period of one year
commencing 1 May 2020 to 30 April 2021 at a
monthly rental of HK$360,000 (exclusive of rates
and management and air-conditioning fees) with
a rent-free period for one month from 1 May
2020 to 31 May 2020 and a rental deposit of
HK$1,080,000. The monthly rental was negotiated
with Homley with reference to the market rents.
Details of the arrangement are set out in the
announcement dated 4 May 2020 issued by the
Company.

On 30 April 2021, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Homley for a further
period of one year commencing 1 May 2021 to
30 April 2022 at a monthly rental of HK$240,000
from 1 May 2021 to 31 October 2021 and
HK$360,000 from 1 November 2021 to 30 April
2022 (exclusive of rates and management and
air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$1,080,000. The monthly rental was negotiated
with Homley with reference to the market rents.
Details of the arrangement are set out in the
announcement dated 30 April 2021 issued by the
Company.

Rentals charged by Homley during the year under
the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$2,940,000 (including HK$360,000 rental
concession).

Homley is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden
Toy and therefore is an associate of the executive
directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Cheng
Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng
Pak Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, and
is regarded as a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
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(b)

The Group has leased from Hover City Industrial
Limited (“Hover City”) a unit of a residential
building since 31 January 2005.

On 30 January 2018, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Hover City for a period
of three years commencing 1 February 2018
to 31 January 2021 at a monthly rental of
HK$75,000 (exclusive of rates and management
and air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$150,000. The monthly rental was determined
by both parties with reference to market rents.
Details of the arrangement are set out in the
announcement dated 30 January 2018 issued by
the Company.

On 1 February 2021, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Hover City for a further
period of one year commencing 1 February 2021
to 31 January 2022 at a monthly rental of
HK$75,000 (exclusive of rates and management
and air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$150,000. The monthly rental was determined
by both parties with reference to market rents.

On 1 February 2022, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Hover City for a further
period of one year commencing 1 February 2022
to 31 January 2023 at a monthly rental of
HK$75,000 (exclusive of rates and management
and air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$150,000. The monthly rental was determined
by both parties with reference to market rents.

Rental charged by Hover City during the year
under the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$900,000.

Hover City is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden
Toy and therefore is an associate of the executive
directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Cheng
Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng
Pak Man, Anita and Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, and
is regarded as a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
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(o)

The Group has leased from Sky Global Investments
Limited (“Sky Global”) an office since 30 January
2012.

On 30 January 2018, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Sky Global for a period
of three years commencing from 1 February 2018
to 31 January 2021 at a monthly rental of
HK$100,000 (exclusive of rates and management
and air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$240,854. The monthly rental was determined
by both parties with reference to the market
rents. Details of the arrangement are set out in
the announcement 30 January 2018 issued by the
Company.

On 1 February 2021, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Sky Global for a further
period of one year commencing 1 February 2021
to 31 January 2022 at a monthly rental of
HK$100,000 (exclusive of rates and management
and air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$240,854. The monthly rental was determined
by both parties with reference to market rents.

On 1 February 2022, the Group renewed the
tenancy agreement with Sky Global for a further
period of one year commencing 1 February 2022
to 31 January 2023 at a monthly rental of
HK$100,000 (exclusive of rates and management
and air-conditioning fees) and a rental deposit of
HK$240,854. The monthly rental was determined
by both parties with reference to market rents.

Rental charged by Sky Global during the year
under the said tenancy agreement amounted to
HK$1,200,000.

Sky Global is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hover
City which in turn is a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Golden Toy and therefore is an
associate of the executive directors of the
Company, namely, Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng
Pak Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and
Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily, and is regarded as a
connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in (a) to
(c) above in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The INEDs have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and the report of the auditor and have
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into
by the Company in the ordinary course of its business,
on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the
terms of the agreement governing such transactions that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other contract of
significance, to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or holding company, or any subsidiary of its
holding company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

REBEERN  ERTTRFAEARE
CENY EN-E30F PEdRET A
BATH -
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No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Group were entered into or in existence during the
year under review.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

RER  ARBIHEAEAHE QR L ERE
B HEBEOARRR 2N, -
B R

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

FNEZBERREARBIZEERE @
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MREARRABEZTREMREEARZ
o
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BEERERE

The remuneration of all directors and senior management
of the Company are decided by the remuneration
committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

Employees of the Group are compensated based on their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The share option scheme (“2020 Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company on 3 August 2020. The 2020 Scheme
provides long-term incentives to directors and eligible
employees and also serves as a retention tool for high
performing staff. Details of the 2020 Scheme are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

EAN/NETA/NCTE B DA S = 3781 Nik: S =2 0]
BERBEE REARAFTELIARE
PRR B ERI -

REZDNBRIERE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

BREEBI A AREMNEARESHN &
FEMERA DA NEE2022F3H318 1k
FEAMBEEAREAS  —EH#HFRTL

ZRBIE ©
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Based on the information that is publicly available and
within the knowledge of the directors, the directors
confirm that the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 March 2022
and up to the date of this report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

REBEARR ZERMAAFI66(IE EEF
PR AR ZEERMN BT EFRE
AZFALTHEMZFEAL ZFEALZ
EAEAAN - EBATAREEETEA
REBZBEREXATERELARE
BEREMEL  BEZER/XTERM
BRXRE2MBEFRR EH KE B
K BENMR - AR R EM
BRI BERSENSHEE ML HE
ERATHENKERZ  HREBED K
FATIHEZER -

REBEFEARN  ARREREESMAEE
| 5B ERITEIIE MR FREE R

G o
A

IR = 8 175 &

Under Bye-law 166(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, the
directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of
their heirs, executors or administrators, shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices
or trusts, provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any wilful negligence, wilful
default, fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of
said persons.

During the year under review, the Company has taken
out and maintained appropriate insurance to cover

potential legal actions against its Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

RAREERESE  YRAFRZ (5
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The Company has share option scheme, the details of
which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this annual report. Save as the aforesaid, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group or existed during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retired as the auditor of the
Company at the close of the annual general meeting
held on 29 July 2019 and did not seek for re-appointment.
RSM Hong Kong (“RSM") was appointed as the auditor
to fill the vacancy and its appointment was approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting held on the same date.

RSM had resigned as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 21 April 2022. PKF Hong Kong Limited
("PKF") was appointed as the auditor to fill the vacancy
and its appointment was approved by the shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting held on
25 May 2022.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2022 have been audited by
PKF. A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint
PKF as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHENG HOP FAI
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
30 June 2022
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26/F, Citicorp Centre
18 Whitfield Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong
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BEEAS L2612
TO THE MEMBERS OF

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
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We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 64 to 147, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BRECEEERBEATZEEHE R
AU ANPEAMERENERZRAEEY
EH ATERBERBBGAVBERER
TEAEERNEBNHERE MASHESE
EEEBREER - A1TTREHREZ
EEMAT :
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:
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BASREAXEIE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

HAREXER
Key Audit Matter

WA EF

Revenue recognition

F2HGaMBREROM TN EEZSG
ZE BI| &9 Bt 5E4(0) ©

Refer to note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements and note 4(o) of
significant accounting policies. =

Our

ERNEREBIRZE  ATRERAME -
RE—EMAREREE -

We identified recognition of revenue from
restaurant operations as a key audit
matter due to the volume of transactions -
of restaurant operations. -

B ZE20223A31BIEFE - KRB BEEZE

5 WA 4940,577,0007 7T (42 & B Rk H -
2 EKEK) - RKEBHWALUBR & KA -
AR&H -

For the year ended 31 March 2022, =
revenue from restaurant operations -
amounted to approximately
HK$40,577,000 (consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income). Vast majority of revenue was
settled in cash or by credit card.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

ZN)

RITMAEERELSRETER
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

SBBRBWASE 2 RFEHE

procedures in relation to revenue from restaurant

operations included:

BEE R M\ SE TS AR % S U A BE SR 2 A 5 A I 1T OB
= s

Obtaining an understanding of the revenue business
processes and testing key controls over revenue
recognition;

MU A GE8E - B AN T A SR
Performing tests of details, on a sample basis, on
recorded revenue;

RHERBANER - K&

Testing revenue cut-off at year-end; and

ETOTERFREEANISEHRAER -
Performing analytical procedures to identify any
unusual patterns of revenue.
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)

V¥ BERISENEHEZEZHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
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The Group’'s management performed
impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets for
restaurant operations where impairment
indicators were identified by estimating
the recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets based on value in use calculations.
Significant judgements and estimates were
involved in the identification of
impairment indicators and in the
assessment of the recoverable amounts of
the property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of those restaurant
operations, including assumptions on the
budgeted revenue and gross margin of
restaurant operations, discount rate and
growth rate.

2021/22 Annual Report 3k

RITEBYE BMEMKREBEUARERAEEE ZRENIE
e
Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
included:

THREEBNMMAEHDE BENXEBARERESR
EEITRERE

— Understanding how management performs
impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets;

- AEREReRZERA HeBUMERMERRE
R BEAMEERA BEEEMNE -2EREE
BHNEREBRAPRMNERE 2B - ARFEITER
EHERM

—  Evaluating the reasonableness of the operating cash
flows forecast and the key assumptions used,
including evaluating the reasonableness of the
budgeted revenue, budgeted gross margin,
expected growth rate with reference to the past
performance and management’s expectation, and
evaluating the suitability of the discount rate used;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

HREREZSEE (R 1T
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Key Audit Matter (Continued)
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(Continued)

WE BERREHNREHAEEEZHBE (F)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

BE2022F3A31ALEE - E25I5tY -
X BEERRBEREREEERIRERS

18 1,890,000 87T & 3,110,000 /& TT ° -
During the year ended 31 March 2022,
impairment losses of HK$1,890,000 and
HK$3,110,000 in respect of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use -
assets have been recognised respectively.

FAME BERIBNERAEEE 2R
BEHETZE EHIRNEETBERERAOMT
5,18 % 19% & -

The significant accounting judgements
and estimates and disclosure of balance of
property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are included in notes 5,
18 and 19 respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

AfERERE E“EIJJ_EZ‘;EEEI“_{ AFZEBRRR
MBEEELEBMRRZATRR

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the cash flow
forecast and actual performance for the year and
future prospect from the cash generating unit; and

EREE WA GURNM D T 1 (R E T 0B E R
g: o

Evaluating the potential impact of the impairment
assessment based on sensitivity analysis of the
budgeted revenue.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER MATTER

REBFBHZE2021F3831BH I FEEHN&EA
kR R — B EAEZ - ZEHAD
R2021F6H23B HZEREXELRERSE
=R o

HibE ¥

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2021 were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on 23 June 2021.

OTHER INFORMATION

ARREFEHEMBERAERET - Hit
EHEBERIENEHR22HER  ETERE
ERGRAMBRRLEBEIRE

ATRGEEMBHRRELZBERLNRE
HMER  TAERZFERBREMT
R R 8 A& wm o

RATERFEMBEHREMS  ATZE
ERMAEBEMER  EMEEEMLERE
DHGEAVHBRRXATERZBRETE
BERFEEANNE  IUFHFHEE
RERBL - WATEREHITZ TR
RRHEMENFESERERRAL - N17A
BEBBEE - ATTAEEBEFNSEER
BT ARE o
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all
of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

EEREEBMGASYBBRRARE
ZE1E

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARPEFEARERREBBGAN SR
2z EBMBRELENREE ARG
BRERE  wEZFERAMBERSER - UE
REMBEHRRIELEEMAF22%H X
EEEFRAR/L B ZHMAERETTE - LAE
RAEMBBR ZHEBETFER KRR
ME 2 BAFHRERAL

ERESEVBHRRE BRIEZAE
B BEEEBFEBRIEFLELE  SEL2ZI
FEEMERATCERTR  BHES
ARENE BEERERELEZEN X
ERERATREERERLLERB S
B WEERANFELE/ER 2D -

EREBAREEEAKENMBEREMRE -

TE]

BB ERGESMBHRR2EME

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

AIWER RHSAVBBRRERBESDS
PEAEARFAHERMEB 2 ERERR
AREEBERE  YRBRAREQRFES
WFZRTE » BHEAAITER Z X BED
HE o ATIER BTUERER) RE
BRit 250 - N& B EE AL B B ° RITH
ERMBMENATRAEAMEMALAE £
SEAEEMEE - A EFRE /S KENR
& B REFRBERERIELETH
ERTEREERMAEFTENERER
B SRR AL R] B AREF SR SR RR P 5 AR - & (& R
SEEBRNSEBRRRA TR EELRE
REBEZSEHEAMBERRMAEL 2EER
E o BIRAR A E KRR -
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

REEBETEETERILER » K17
REBELEETERFEXZHE - WIREF
BRBEREE - K175

. %%&ﬂﬁﬁé%ﬁﬁ%mmﬁﬁ
3k £ R 1 8 BUEY B K R AR R L L B
PRI JE Ut 55 i\ B SR 5t I NI T AR A2 Fr
WERFERBEENEZRE R
AAZBME R AR - BRMEFR] 8
BREFE RE - BEER ERK
o FERRAEEZE E BAlkKR
BE R A MFFMEBUH IR B KRR
LmHAAﬁEA;KAngfﬁlfasiﬁgfﬁ
3R B K B AR R A Y = B

s EHEFZMEHEAAERE
@%m%ﬁﬁf EEWE%Q ﬁ
SEANEZNBERERERER -

. FEEFMRAEHEEOREER
Fr{E R B AR B A TR -

e HEEHAMNIBFELESTERMN
EMEL &R URBEMERMNEZ
BE - HET e ERY BESEFE
W%%ﬂ?iiﬁﬁﬁ%?#i%ﬂ

EAGTEERTHEEMN - WRATR
BEEEATEEN BV EEZ
SR ETIRBERE IESAME
WMEMEBERR  BREE@EEETH
TR RIBARERBEMBE - N1TH
HEam DERZER RS B IEFTESH
FIZRFE o A - *X%ﬁilﬂﬁ
ey BEEBETREBELES -
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

s HERSTHEAVBHMERNERZIT
A BBEUAT (BREEMEE) AR
REMBHRERETRATRREBRS
ISR

e B BERERNERBIXBKEADNMB
EHNERTREENEZERRE Ut
REMBRRERER - ATHABER
EE EERATEENEZ I E-
ATARRTZERERAEZAR
£ o

ATHEEZZEER (EPEE)EXRT
YRR T SIS E M R L BFA R B REZH
B BREATRERBES BN L AE
TREREARMBETER -

AOINAEZZEQRIBH  FHHAXT
EETERBYIMEMNERERENR  WE
REBBEAARSEMBERR/GZERT
BYMENMABRLREMSEE AR (N
AR BB S o

HEEZZESBRBNEERD  KATHEE
MLEEFEUAHRRS M BRROBZR
RER WHAMBKBREZSFE - AT
RIZBEN R EFHEAZEFFTE  RIFEAE
PERTIAFLCAREZSTFR 0 1E
EROBERAT  ATRBBEBEZEFFEA
HTREEBRHAN AR BRREBELRARAE
ZEZREMMBEMRE IR REPHKE
BRAARTENZBERE TR ZERE -
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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BB G BHRR2EE (&) AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

HEKRBT MRS EZBEES A The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

BB (M EZEERIP03499) independent auditor’s report is Hui Lai King (Practising
Certificate Number: P03499).

REREBR(BEB)SHMEERERIA PKF Hong Kong Limited

HEDI AT Certified Public Accountants
BB Hong Kong
2022F6 H30H 30 June 2022

2021/22 Annual Report 3R G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BNEBEEERAT (3



64

ire B KA RS

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

20224 20214
2022 2021
M 3T FE T F& 7T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
WA Revenue 8 114,637 37,173
5 65 B AR Cost of sales (79,129) (11,644)
EX Gross profit 35,508 25,529
H U A R B A U a Other income and other gains and
KB losses 9 2,033 10,678
8 TR Staff costs (19,186) (18,682)
mEgERe Short-term lease rentals (6,230) (3,220)
e Depreciation (3,321) (6,478)
M R MR Impairment loss on property, plant
ZRME and equipment (1,890) _
EREEEZRE Impairment loss on right-of-use
assets (3,110) =
Mm% - BB R&E Write off of property, plant and
ZFEH equipment (2,005) =
HihZEE B Other operating expenses (14,169) (14,150)
R Eia Loss from operations (12,370) (6,323)
7% & A Finance costs 11 (1,406) (2,194)
BREAIEE Loss before tax (13,776) (8,517)
Fri5 % & B Income tax expense 12 (304) (243)
FEBFBEREAAT Loss for the year and loss
BREREMLZEE attributable to owners of the
Company 13 (14,080) (8,760)

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

20224 20214
2022 2021
Bt 5 FTHERT FAT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hih2m (F8) W : Other comprehensive (loss)/
income:
TEETHEE Items that will not be reclassified
BamZHE - to profit or loss:
EAFEFAEMEER Fair value changes of equity
Was (MR FEFA investments at fair value through
HEmemkzl) 2 other comprehensive income
RETE 2 A FEZS  ("FVTOCI") (125) 38
HEAEE 7 EE Items that may be reclassified
BmoHE - subsequently to profit or loss:
BMEGINEREE 2 Exchange differences arising on
PE 7, =58 translating foreign operations 116 1,036
FERVFAHMGE2E Other comprehensive (loss)/
(B8] h#z income for the year, net of
tax (9) 1,074
AATREEMLZ Total comprehensive loss for
FERXHBREAHR the year attributable to
owners of the Company (14,089) (7,686)
BREXR Loss per share (basic and
BEEE B diluted) (cents) 17 (0.72) (0.45)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

#2022 & 3 A 31 H As at 31 March 2022

20224 20214
2022 2021
M 3T THExT FE T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
kREBEE Non-current assets
ME - WENKRE Property, plant and equipment 18 6,000 2,545
EREERE Right-of-use assets 19 9,711 1,796
MEHRERS Property rental deposits 1,330 -
17,041 4,341
RBEE Current assets
Ve Inventories 20 768 948
&R A RKA Capitalised contract costs 21 - 45,807
B 5 I H e g 58 Trade and other receivables 22 1,319 3,288
MEHRERS Property rental deposits 1,481 4,071
BN ES AHAM Equity instruments as at FVTOCI
FEHWRZRELA 23 1,131 1,256
EEFRITIFR Pledged bank deposits 24 = 417
1T MIR® R Bank and cash balances 31,730 21,467
36,429 77,254
REBAE Current liabilities
25 Kk H MR R Trade and other payables 25 5,830 12,452
R AR EXK Loan from the ultimate parent 26 - 20,112
HEaE Lease liabilities 27 2,443 565
8,273 33,129
RBEESE Net current assets 28,156 44,125
WEERRBERE Total assets less current
liabilities 45,197 48,466
FREBEE Non-current liability
HEAE Lease liabilities 27 10,820 —
EEFE NET ASSETS 34,377 48,466
B A & 7% Capital and reserves
AR 7R Share capital 28 194,631 194,631
1 Reserves 30 (160,254) (146,165)
EREEE TOTAL EQUITY 34,377 48,466

R2022F6H30BEEEE#E - BET

IEFHERE

e
CHENG Hop Fai

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

and are signed on its behalf by:

BEH

CHENG Pak Man, Anita

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

e REE kARt REEREE BRERR ENfE 2RER g
Investment Share
Share Share Capital  revaluation options  Translation ~ Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(it o)) (%t 00)) (H& 300)i)
(note 30(b)(i)) ~ (note 30(b)ii)) (note 30(b)(ii))
Thr TR T Thn Thr T Thn i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
1R202084A1R t 1 April 2020 194,631 88,794 84123 (80) 2,906 (1,125) (313,097) 56,152
EE2ERE/(BR)ESE  Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year - - - - - 1,036 (8,760) (7,724)
BATEARM2ENEZ Change in fair value of equity
REIEZATEES instruments at FYTOC| - - - 38 - _ _ 38
FEEREY Changes in equity for the year = = - 38 = 1,036 (8.760) (7,686)
R2021%3A318 At 31 March 2021 194,631 88,794 84,123 (42) 2,906 (89) (321,857) 48,466
R2021154A1R t 1 April 2021 194,631 88,794 84,123 (42) 2,906 (89) (321,857) 48,466
EE2ENE/(BE)EE  Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year - - - - - 116 (14,080) (13,964)
RATEFAEM2ENEZ Change in fair value of equity
RETEZATEES instruments at FVTOCI - - - (125) = - = (125)
BREXH Lapse of share options - - - - (186) - 186 .
EEEREY Changes in equity for the year = = - (125) (186) 116 (13,894) (14,089)
R2022453A318 At 31 March 2022 194,631 88,794 84,123 (167) 2,720 21 (335,751) 34371
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

2022%F 20214
2022 2021
FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RETHRMEEZEHELMRE  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
B B A B 1B Loss before tax (13,776) (8,517)
HE Adjustments for:
ME--BERREZITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 927 843
FHREEEZNE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 2,394 5,635
Y% - BB REERE Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment 1,890 =
FREEEZRE Impairment loss on right-of-use assets 3,110 -
M EA Finance costs 1,406 2,194
ME B Gain on lease modifications - (528)
Y BB MR 2 Write off of property, plant and
equipment 2,005 -
B RARSWA Interest and dividend income (219) (787)
LEESEFAI 2L LEIE  Operating loss before working capital
changes (2,263) (1,160)
FE D Decrease in inventories 180 129
B AR ASE D,/ (1) Decrease/(increase) in capitalised costs 45,807 (45,807)
E 5 N E b e W sk IE Decrease/(increase) in trade and
S (38 n) other receivables 2,869 (1,630)
HEZES D Decrease in property rental deposit 1,215 =
B 5 & E b e A (Decrease)/increase in trade and other
G ) /20 payables (5,960) 3,024
Ry (AR &SRR Cash generated from/(used in)
ZHR& operations 41,848 (45,444)
BTSN Income tax paid (304) (243)
HEAGHNE Interest on lease liabilities (438) (2,017)
RE(AR)EEEE Net cash generated from/(used in)
IR FE operating activities 41,106 (47,704)

68 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

20224 20214
2022 2021
FHExT T35 7T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RETBHMEE2EHEKRE  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
EWFE KRS Interest and dividend received 69 411
BEWE BELEE Purchases of property, plant and
equipment (8,277) (47)
B T B PrERIE Proceed from disposal of equity
instruments - 1
FREERZRITER Placement of pledged bank deposits - (1)
BB ERRITER Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 417 -
(AR REKREEE 2 Net cash (used in)/generated from
L ERE investing activities (7,791) 364
METEFMEE2HELARE  CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
KEREXE AR ZER Loan raised from the ultimate parent 23,000 20,000
AREZEARIEEER Loan repayment to the ultimate parent (43,000) -
YN &EEERARERHE Loan interest paid to the ultimate parent (1,060) -
HEZHz A D Principal elements of lease payment (991) (9,065)
(AR)/REBETE Net cash (used in)/generated from
ZIEEFE financing activities (22,051) 10,935
ReRkBEE&EEER NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
®/iCRD) B8 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 11,264 (36,405)
EXREEH s g & Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (1,001) 1,036
RAB1BZHRER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
Re%EHER 1 APRIL 21,467 56,836
M3A31MBZEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
HeZEEH 31 MARCH 31,730 21,467
ReRBEEERBE N ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
RITRIE &4 Bank and cash balances 31,730 21,467
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

—BEH

GENERAL INFORMATION

REBEEEERAR (RAAF])
REREAMKLAXRAEERA
7] o H 3t it ¥ = B 4k AClarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermudac EFX E & ¥ E A FH
S JLBE SN /D I SR EB AN B E E 98T R
EREHEFROIBI08E - KA R Z KK
REBBERSFBR AT (MR
Frl) £k £ o

ARB R —FEREZKRAE - KM B
DRIZ EBXBENGE BRI
32

RKRBEERR REBREXHES
# it A% 32 ZKong Fai International
Limited R E&ZZER AT - HEIE %
E(TEEAE]) RERKEKERARRQF
L EREEERRTT o

wREE

G-Vision International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
address of its principal place of business is Unit 108,
1st Floor, East Ocean Centre, 98 Granville Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
Kong Fai International Limited (“Kong Fai”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the "BVI"), is the ultimate parent. Mr. Cheng Hop
Fai (“Mr. Cheng”) and his family members are the
ultimate controlling parties of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
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WELR DR - BEVHRE LR
BREEFBMBHREERN([FEMHER
X)) - FRGHEN (BB
EA D RZRE - ZEFRAWBHRERD
NEEEHMAERHMARRAAES L
MR (TEMARRI ) Z @8 3B R
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SEBBRFR] RAEIERT LRI AR5 2
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These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“"HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"); and Interpretations. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ERAKEIEBNBREER

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

(a) RAFERFERZEBITER

B 7% 3% 45 2 8

RAFE AEERREGE Y
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TR A EMITF2021F481
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(@) Amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Covid-19-Related
Rent Concession

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

In addition, the Group applied the agenda
decision of the IFRS Interpretations Committee
(the “Committee”) of the International
Accounting Standards Board issued in June
2021 which clarified the costs an entity should
include as “estimated costs necessary to make
the sale” when determining the net realizable
value of inventories.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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3. ERKETEEMBEHREEL (&) 3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue

(b) B BB [ R £ Rz #FT RAZ S

BB BHREER
AEBEWEZFEA T5IE HM
BRARERZHFTREERTER
B E A

BERMBHREEN 2 FREBEER
Amendments to Annual
Improvements Project
BB HmEERE3R
BB G ERIFE165% K&
BB G ERIEITR ZEF]
Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKAS 16 and HKAS 37
21551 55 (KIEF])
Revised Accounting Guideline 5

BB ERIFE15H 2B
Amendments to HKAS 1

BB ERELERF175
HKFRS 17
HBEREESSH (20205)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

BB EUNFIREETBY RS

HREBEPFE2NR 2B
Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BEREFTERESR 21EE]
Amendments to HKAS 8
BEETERNFE125 2185
Amendments to HKAS 12

BEBMBRELERFE105% &
BB G ERFE 285 2 1BF]

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

i R2022F1 1B sk 2 ARG F
S B RS A 3

2 R2023F1A1B 2 B AR F
JE B RE AE 3

3 RETE BB AR

ARREEEY  ERALREA
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but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

BB EAER20185F £2020F 2 F EHUE!
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020'

NEEZER]

Narrow-scope amendments’

HEAZEH TEaH &6 HFEFE

Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations’

BEDE A MBS IE R B2

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?

IRB2 & 492

Insurance Contracts?

MBHRERZEV - EBERAHSBEREREER
R EHER 2 HEE?

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause?

SRR 2 R
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

IR ZER?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

AE—RXGEACEERBEZBBEIELETIR

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction?

REEEEBERNRREELELHE
MEEHEIEE?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

I Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023

3 Effective date is to be determined

The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all above new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
unless mentioned otherwise in the accounting
policies below (e.g. certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 March.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power
over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date the control
ceases.
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4., FEESFER| () 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a) HEKRE (&)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)
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The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
that results in a loss of control represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that subsidiary and
(ii) the Company’s share of the net assets of
that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and
any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and
unrealised profits are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity
within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
the non-controlling shareholders and owners of
the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling shareholders even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners). The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less impairment loss, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAT

75



A R R M T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. ETEGELR (&) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(b) SEHBRE (&) (b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i) EEBHBEHREZZKXERAE (ii) Transactions and balances in each
3 entity’s financial statements
HINEEZ SRV EREIR R Transactions in foreign currencies are
HPHERZEXBE R translated into the functional currency on
S UIINEREMLZEE initial recognition using the exchange rates
MEERBREERSERETHR prevailing on the transaction dates.
ZEXRBE  WHMBEREKE Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
EZRBEREBERANER - currencies are translated at the exchange

rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit

or loss.
RINE RN T EFE 2T Non-monetary items that are measured at
HEDEREEAFEERALZ fair values in foreign currencies are
PEXRMAHE o translated using the exchange rates at the

dates when the fair values are determined.

BEIEREA 2R EE When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
REMEE W = ERE - Z item is recognised in other comprehensive
Wk 18 2 M E LIS income, any exchange component of that
eREMErEKREER B gain or loss is recognised in other

JEEBIHE 2 WamskEBER comprehensive income. When a gain or

BaERAR  zWamsEiE loss on a non-monetary item is recognised

Z AR EE X BB D @ N IE B in profit or loss, any exchange component

R o of that gain or loss is recognised in profit

or loss.

(iii) " ERERE (i) Translation on consolidation
AEEMBEERB 2T The results and financial position of all the
WMENRARRZZIE Group entities that have a functional
o BEEBRMEARRER currency different from the Company's
NTHRABRERARRZE presentation currency are translated into
HIEE the Company’s presentation currency as

follows:

- BHRIZEBRRE — Assets and liabilities for each
NNEENBEHINZ statement of financial position
MBHARAKEER 2K presented are translated at the closing
TEXRBRE ; rate at the date of that statement of

financial position;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

—  All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of monetary
items that form part of the net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are reclassified in the
consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.
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4. FTESFEL (B) 4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in
profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The principal annual rates are as follows:

Over the lease term
or 2 — 5 years
Over the lease term

Furniture and restaurant
equipment
Leasehold improvement

useful lives and
are reviewed and
at the end of each

The residual values,
depreciation method
adjusted, if appropriate,
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.
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4. FTESFEL (8) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) HE (&) (d) Leases (Continued)
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The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of
low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily restaurant, office, director’s quarter
and storage room. When the Group enters into
a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAT

79



30

NN RLET e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(d) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise,
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(d) Leases (Continued)

(e)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change
in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.
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4. FTESFEL (B) 4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(f) Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer
or the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer
which are not capitalised as inventory,
property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained. Incremental costs of obtaining a
contract are capitalised when incurred if the
costs are expected to be recovered, unless the
expected amortisation period is one year or less
from the date of initial recognition of the asset,
in which case the costs are expensed when
incurred. Other costs of obtaining a contract
are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract or to
a specifically identifiable anticipated contract;
generate or enhance resources that will be
used to provide goods or services in the future;
and are expected to be recovered. Costs that
relate directly to an existing contract or to a
specifically identifiable anticipated contract may
include direct labour, direct materials,
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly
chargeable to the customer and other costs
that are incurred only because the group
entered into the contract. Other costs of
fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised
as inventory, property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.

2021/22 Annual Report %R



ire SRR R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Htt &R KA ()

BARAL A R AN R AR R At #
HIMREBEAR -6 RKAK
BEEREELRSR () A5EEH
AHRE S E AR R Y 7 SR 7S
4B B FIBRACE - A () &
TR P SR B R A R A (A
WARTERE R 2 FER S EHER
RBEEE

&AL A AR A 1 8 34 7 R R
4 2 AR B 0 A B B A BB 25 -

BRARAKALBEISHMIA

TREENSRBERANKREK
SRTEAMNBRXZANTE R
A MBIRRARAER -

TRHEENERBERNERA
FEFE - ROBERE - WE
FETEREEREREE (R
ATPEFABENEREER
ERMBERIN MEESIBHR
Z A& 2@ BB A A SR
ZETMEEXERABAENAYF
B WEZAFEFAREZSE
MEEXTRABBEEZRIIBNR
ZRAGARFRBEPHER -

2021/22 Annual Report 3k

(f)

(9)

Other contract costs (Continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Impairment losses are recognised to the
extent that the carrying amount of the contract
cost asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining
amount of consideration that the group expects
to receive in exchange for the goods or services
to which the asset relates, less (ii) any costs
that relate directly to providing those goods or
services that have not yet been recognised as
expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue to
which the asset relates is recognised.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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(9)

(h)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognizes its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognize the
financial asset and also recognizes a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace. All recognised financial
assets are measured subsequently in their
entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial
assets.
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(h) Financial assets (Continued)
Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from
the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

—  FVTOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income, except for
the recognition in profit or loss of
expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and
losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.
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(h) Financial assets (Continued)

()

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVTPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group makes
an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent
changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis,
but may only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to retained
earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as
at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or
loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If
revenue has been recognised before the group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a
contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using

the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses.
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()

(k)

V)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected
credit losses (“ECL").

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all
of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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(m) Trade and other payables

(n)

(o)

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidence a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Revenue and other income
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Restaurant operations

The performance obligation is the promise to
provide food and beverages. Revenue from
operation of Chinese restaurants is recognised
at a point in time when the food and beverages
are served to the customers. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the services are
rendered to the customers at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment
is due. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the services are
rendered to the customers. For payments
settled by credit cards by customers, the
settlement period is normally within 2 days
from the trade date. As the provision of these
services are at a period of one year or less, as
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocation to the unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed.
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(o)

(p)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
Property development

Revenue is recognised at the point in time
when control over the property has been
transferred to the customer.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment are
established.

Other income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.
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(p)

(a)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes which are
available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to the profit
or loss represents contributions payable by
the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits, and when the Group recognizes
restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors and employees.

Equity-settled share-based payments to
directors and employees are measured at the
fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted
for the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to
consultants are measured at the fair value of
the services rendered or, if the fair value of the
services rendered cannot be reliably measured,
at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. The fair value is measured at the date
the Group receives the services and is
recognised as an expense.
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(r)

(s)

(t)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to it and
that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over
the period to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current
tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit recognised in profit or loss because it
excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAT

91



A R R M T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

4. TESFEL (8) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) BiE (&) (t) Taxation (Continued)

BERERBINIRGEMBRREE
kBEREESRFERRTEN
FTRAERER R 2 R MR -
EXERBREBEERAARER
Moo e By = FR AR FE AR - TR REFR IR
B EE BRI ] B 3R B AR T A DA
HHATMB RS Z8 - KRBHR
TR &5 18 S R P T TRURL S B A A T
ReoMEREBBLENRE R
RF (EBEHRIN T T HER
HWEEMABRELEZREZ
B HERTOSE A K& FHE AR
ERTE AZEEERAEBD
SR

KEREMEBRR Z R R
EBRANKERRELERIAR
{8+ BRIEA S B A) 2 5 b By = 58
ZEBIA N R ZEALRAR
5 K & R A

BERERBEENRHESNRE
HEEANEZ  TERHRE
BRI LA e 5 e AR B A AT it
WEEEMAMOBEERL °

ERERIA T EREAEREE
BREXABREEHE2HE
BERBREHRCERKEEZ
tEERZBER -BREHEEN
1Ba AR - R IFE T R A
Hit 2 E Wk B RN
RZBABEBE -EEBRT B
EREENEMEE R asHE
KA P IRER o

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.
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The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group
recognizes the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.
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(u) Impairment of non-financial assets

(v)

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for
indications of impairment and where an asset is
impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. If this is the
case, recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less
costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the
estimated future cash flows of the asset/CGU.
Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU
whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro
rata amongst the other assets of the CGU.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they
reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for
expected credit losses on trade receivables. The
amount of expected credit losses is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.
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The Group always recognizes lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The expected credit losses on
these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group'’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognizes lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the
financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit
losses that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.
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(v) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Group’s debtors
operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental
bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the
Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;
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(v) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of
default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term, and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAT

97



A R R M T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

4. TESFEL (8) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) =@MEERME (H)

(v) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

FEmEAEE N (&)
AEBRE HEENIBEER
AMBE AR RERR] - A
EIHINSEETR  BENAEIE
EFRAIEN]  AZeREE
AEREREERR -BOERXS
HF P BN R 43 B 58 H5K
15 o

AEBETFHEARRBZRNEER
RELDBERNZENEELAY
M YHEBEEBR MELEE
VABE OR 7% 28 Rl F2 SR IR 8 HR A - B
BRI HEEERR D BEEN -

B ESE
REBRRATERRARBEE
RBREEENMSCBERENSE
r AAERAERRER &
DA A ] — TR {6k F B JB MR TR —
AR AU

- RZPHFOERMBRE
i

- REAEBERE X RSN ED SRR ER
BHEHBR BHATK
AEEREEA (BRAKE)
BERR(RBEERAEHE
FAEZEMERR) -

B LaAERme . —RmE
ETMEERPBEIOKRE - &K
SEHRAREBNEELE BIER
SEEAEATEENERER
HRNENZEEERIKRE  BIE

IR

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have
low credit risk when the asset has external
credit rating of “investment grade” in
accordance with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the counterparty; or

— information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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(v) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the counterparty’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the
counterparty will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the debtor
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, including when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’'s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of expected credit losses is a
function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at
default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is
estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. For a lease receivable, the cash
flows used for determining the expected credit
losses is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance
with HKFRS 16.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance
for a financial instrument at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period,
but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognizes an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.
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(w) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(x)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of the reporting period or
those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 4, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumption about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affect both current and
future periods.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or
any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case
of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flows
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use
assets), the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the assets belong.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the
recoverable amounts.
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

Further, the cash flows projections, growth rate and
discount rate are subject to greater uncertainties in
the current year due to uncertainty on how the
COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve and
volatility in financial markets, including potential
disruptions in the Group’s restaurant operation.

As at 31 March 2022, in view of impairment
indicators, the Group performed impairment
assessment on property, plant and equipment with
carrying amount of HK$6,000,000 and right-of-use
assets of HK$9,711,000 respectively. Impairment
losses of HK$1,890,000 and HK$3,110,000 in
respect of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets have been recognised
respectively. Details of the impairment assessment
of property, plant equipment and right-of-use assets
are disclosed in notes 18 and 19.

Deferred taxation

At 31 March 2022, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$241,935,000 (2021: HK$239,676,000)
available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
such unused tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are greater than expected,
a material recognition of deferred tax assets may
arise, which will be recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which such recognition takes place.
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FTEEHRINELUGBITEHERIRE
1THNIR & sRBE AV PE W M Es o

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign currency risk, price risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group'’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

Some of the subsidiaries of the Company has
foreign currency sales or bank balances in
Australian dollar (“AUD") which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. Approximately
65% and 84% of the Group’s sales and cost of
sales, respectively are denominated in AUD. In
addition, the Company has intra-group
balances with subsidiaries denominated in
foreign currency which also expose the Group
to foreign currency risk.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

At 31 March 2022, if AUD had weakened 5 per
cent against HK$ with all other variables held
constant, consolidated loss after tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$1,319,000 (2021: HK$3,009,000) higher,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange loss on bank and cash balances
denominated in AUD. If the AUD had
strengthened 5 per cent against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, consolidated loss
after tax for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,319,000 (2021:
HK$3,009,000) lower, arising mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange gain on bank and cash
balances denominated in AUD.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) ErEER

(c)
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(b) Price risk

(c)

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
mainly through its investment in equity
securities. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return
profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on
the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2021: 10%)
higher/lower, other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 March 2022 would increase/
decrease by HK$113,000 (2021: HK$126,000).
This is mainly due to the changes in fair value
of financial assets at FVTOCI.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in the event of the counterparties failure to
perform its obligations is arising from the
carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group applies ECL model under which the
Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12-month ECL for all the Group’s financial
assets, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition in
which circumstance the Group recognizes
lifetime ECL. The Group considers the
probability of default upon initial recognition of
asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis. The
directors of the Company believe that there are
no significant increase in credit risk of the
Group's financial asset since initial recognition.

The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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(c)

FERRE (&)
BEZERSE
EXEBELNERBEAREERAE
FEERBOBEK 2F REE
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CAMEEXEEHRE—T&2%
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BERFPHNBEERMUREFEE
FTBE 2 88 AR o B 5 FE W RIR
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SE-—MmE AKEBTSE
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2ot e WHEAREER
HESE ERAEBLNEMNE
EEBLER TREFEBARER
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HREMEERETSEAEET
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(c) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each
business unit subject to the Group's established
policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Individual
credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 days from
the date of billing. Debtors with balances that
are more than 90 days past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases. The
expected loss rate of current trade receivables
and contract assets are assessed to be 0%. As
at 31 March 2022 and 2021, there is no loss
allowance provision for these balances.

Other receivables/property rental deposits/
pledged bank deposits/bank balances

No allowance has been recognised for other
receivables and property rental deposits as the
expected loss for these balances is immaterial
under 12-month ECL model based on the
Group's assumption on the rates of default of
respective counterparties taking into account
forward-looking information.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

(d)
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FERR (&)

ERFRITIEH - RITAE ()

EHERRITERLRITERNE
ERBRAR ARXZEFRE
EEFERBERTSEETFLN
RIT - ELBRBHRHEERE
EAREK e

B MR

7N 5= B 1Y SR A2 TE B BRI 3R B Ko
BHRBESTE  BRAERRE
MR UmeHEEREE
HZRBESHFE -

AEEFMTESRBERAAOR

ARRB S RENIHB RS T A

™

R2022%3A318 At 31 March 2022
EAREMERTE Trade and other payables
HERRE Lease liabilities
R2021%3A318 At 31 March 2021
BAREMERTE Trade and other payables
REREBLATER Loan from the ultimate parent
HEAR Lease liabilities

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables/property rental deposits/
pledged bank deposits/bank balances
(Continued)

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and
bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by credit-rating agencies. The
ECL for these balances was insignificant.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities is as follow:

METHNE EEIMER 1582% 2555 8%
Weighted ~ On demand Between 1 Between 2
average or within and and

interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years Total

TR TET TET ThT

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$000

N/A 5,830 - - 5,830

5.00% 3,040 3310 8,480 14,830

N/A 12,452 = = 12,452

5.00% 20,112 - - 20,112

7.50% -11.70% 585 - - 585
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6. HKERERE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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(e)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk which arises from lease liabilities (note 27).
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances
and pledged bank deposits (note 24) as at 31
March 2022 and 2021. The management of the
Group considers the Group’s exposures of the
bank balances are not significant as interest
bearing bank balances are within short maturity
period and thus they are not included in
sensitivity analysis. The Group currently does
not have a policy on cash flow hedges of
interest rate risk. However, the management of
the Group monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

The effect of changes in interest rates is not
significant to the consolidated financial
statements. Except as stated above, the Group
has no other significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities and the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.
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6. BIEEREIE(E) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(f) €mITEHEH (f) Categories of financial instruments
20224 20214
2022 2021
THExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHMEE Financial assets:
R AT E R Financial assets measured at
TREE amortised cost 35,377 28,675
BATES AREMEEYZ Financial assets measured at
HNEmMEE—HRTE FVTOCI - equity instruments 1,131 1,256
EtHmEeE: Financial liabilities:
R 2R Financial liabilities measured at
cREaE amortised cost 5,830 32,533
(9) AF¥E (g) Fair values
REBEGFALGLEMERARPH The carrying amount of the Group's financial
SREENSHEBENERDEHE assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
EZXBHNAFERSE - consolidated statement of financial position

approximate their respective fair values.
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#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

7. AVEMHE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

RNFEREMS2EERTE B ZE
BEFRXZBBMHEEEXXNERE
BZRE-ATRAFEAEZEES
1 3 2 {8 F I HE A R (A E B il /9
BABEE D /R=EFR

E18R AEBERFERR

WABEBER: AHNEEXEE

RIEBRMZIE 2
WE(CREHE)

28

BEESBETER
WMABER: IBEEBEREZ2H A

B (Z1RBEEZ

WERRIN) + &

F3%/ & E
WASERS: =

AEENBREABRELENRBRK
BEZHRE BREANE LA L=E
A Bl e AEfa] — & -

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that
categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
technigques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the
measurement date.

inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that

are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognize transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that

caused the transfer.
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H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

AFEEREE -

59

A PENE
RATES AL B2 AR
ZRETA
LHRAES

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy:

R2022F M20214

3H31H 3H31H
ATEHE AQAFEFAE
Fair value Fair value
measurements  measurements
as at as at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
E1R F18
Level 1 Level 1
THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Description
Recurring fair value measurements:
Equity instruments at FVTOCI
— Listed equity securities 1,131 1,256
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#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

8. WA 8. REVENUE
(@) WADE (a) Disaggregation of revenue
RERNERFEZT 26 RK AR Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
RIEIEE D WT ¢ customers by service line for the year is as
follows:
20224 20214
2022 2021
FERT FA7T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REEBHKRREER Revenue from contracts with
FEISKEE A 2 customers within the scope of
EFAEKA HKFRS 15
BEXErEEMDK Disaggregated by major products or
PR7% 4R 75 28 service lines
— e R E — Operation of Chinese restaurants 40,577 37,173
—MEER — Property development 74,060 _
114,637 37,173

AEBRE —BHEBHUATES
BE SR 45 A0 4 TR [ 15 /9 7 S A AR &

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of
goods and services at a point in time in the

FEEREEIA following major product lines and geographical
regions.
ERRE NERR st
Restaurant operations  Property development Total
WNE W1E ANE WNE WANE 01E
BEIANALERE For the year ended 31 March 2022 2021 2022 2001 2022 2021
TER T TR Tin ThER TR
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000
BT Geographical market
B Hong Kong 40,577 31173 - = 40,577 37173
N Australa - - 74060 - 74060 -
40,577 31173 74,060 = 114,637 37,173
BARE Timing of recognition
RE-BR%ER Transferred at a point in time 40,577 37173 74,060 - 114,637 37173
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H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

REVENUE (Continued)

(b) BREE

EEEE
BHOEERERHERMMAB N
Ao REPNEBENBRARE
AERREERNE —FEEE
R BRFERERTPIREM
AR 745 ey i S fR 1F M ER A (B )
M MER LB —BREREA IR
HIR -XZERIERTFPIRH
AR5 85 BN B B A S » B P LA
ERAREENTE  GEH K
SRERXZBEEFHMAA > AR
BERBOHRS—FHIN—
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ABRYE 2 EHIERE —KHE
HEBRERPRER
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(b) Performance obligation

Restaurant operations

The performance obligation is the promise to
provide food and beverages. Revenue from the
operations of Chinese restaurants is recognised
at a point in time when the food and beverages
are served to the customers. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the services are
rendered to the customers at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment
is due. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the services are
rendered to the customers. For payments
settled by credit cards by customers, the
settlement period is normally within 2 days
from the trade date. As the provision of these
services are at a period of one year or less, as
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocation to the unsatisfied contracts is
not disclosed.

Property development

The Group develops residential properties in
Australia. Revenue is recognised at the point in
time when control over the property has been
transferred to the customer.
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#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

9. Hbx AR HAW=ERERE

9. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS AND
LOSSES

20224 20214
2022 2021
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Hi g A Other income
B A —RITER Interest income — bank deposits 2 351
& B A Dividend income 67 60
MEBA Sundry income 437 19
MESE W Gain on lease modifications = 528
BR AT 85 B (K7 aE) Government subsidies (note) 2,050 5,673
HEF S A Imputed interest income 150 376
2,706 7,007
Hinlz= Rk ER Other gains and losses
FIEH (B5R) ha Net exchange (loss)/gain (673) 3,671
At Total 2,033 10,678
it - Note:

REN AKEEREEBERTEHTHE
RHUZEREM GERIER) BBt BIHER
2,050,000/ 7T (20214 : 5,673,000/ 7T) &2
COVID-191AR 2 fH AL &5 °

During the year, the Group recognised government grants of
HK$2,050,000 (2021: HK$5,673,000) in respect of COVID-19
related subsidies, which related to Catering Business (Social
Distancing) Subsidy Scheme provided by the Hong Kong

Special Administrative Region Government.
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION
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MEHRR — RANFEEHE

AEE 2z R E DR R Em
MR REERB R - EREE
ESVRIECE SV A E-F b E
TR AisEs a2 w o HE R
i o

DEERITBEAIETHEAX - H
g A - FEWARMIEER - “W
EETREEEBRITEREEITR
RekHh 2HEETBEBERIEE
SREMEMNRE -EERELETE
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The Group has two operating segments as follows:

Restaurant —  Operation of Chinese
operations restaurants in Hong Kong
Property - Property development in

development Australia

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic
business units that offer different products and
services. They are managed separately because each
business requires different expertise and marketing
strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as those described in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. Segment profits
or losses do not include unallocated administrative
expenses, other income, interest income and
finance costs. Segment assets do not include
pledged bank deposits and bank and cash balances.
Segment liabilities do not include unallocated trade
and other payables. This is the measure reported to
the chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Revenue are generated from external customers.
There were no inter-segment sales in both years.

There is no customer contributing over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group for both years from
restaurant operations.
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10. D EPBE L (&) 10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
FRERE AR BEENEEER: Information about operating segment profit or
loss, assets and liabilities:
REEZ RENZ
BEEK MERR “E
Restaurant Property
operations in  development
Hong Kong in Australia Total
THERT TERT TERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HZ2022F3A318 L Year ended 31 March 2022
RENBERE ZBWA Revenue from external customers 40,577 74,060 114,637
A8 (BR) s Segment (loss)/profit (22,015) 7,447 (14,568)
MEWA Interest revenue 152 - 152
isS-aw Interest expense (1,406) - (1,406)
TR B Government subsidies 2,050 = 2,050
"M% BERREFE Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (927) - (927)
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets (2,394) = (2,394)
nE - BEREERE Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment (1,890) - (1,890)
EREZERE Impairment loss on right-of-use
assets (3,110) - (3,110)
FERER Income tax expense - (304) (304)
HEAFREEE : Other material non-cash items:
FE N R Net exchange loss (673) - (673)
ENESBERBEE Additions to segment
non-current assets 22,791 - 22,791
®2022F3A31H As at 31 March 2022
DEEE Segment assets 21,739 1 21,740
NEBEE Segment liabilities (18,713) (305) (19,018)
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H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

TERE s MIER - EENEEER:

—~

&)

BZE2021%38318 1t

YIRS A ON
PHER
MBHA
M8
B8 7 i B
NEx- BELREAE

EREEENE
FEHER
HEEAFREER
HEZE W
AIE 5 e

ENESHERDEE
R2021%3A31AH

DHEE

NHAE

Year ended 31 March 2021

Revenue from external customers

Segment loss

Interest revenue

Interest expense

Government subsidies

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Income tax expense

Other material non-cash items:
Gain on lease modifications
Net exchange gain

Additions to segment
non-current assets

As at 31 March 2021
Segment assets
Segment liabilities

REBZ
BEXH
Restaurant
operations in
Hong Kong
TEX
HK$'000

37,173
(16,782)
619
(2,194)
5,673

(843)
(5,635)

528

47

11,992
29,824

PRz
NEER
Property
development
in Australia
FHT
HK$'000

(302)
108

(243)

3,671

47,719
3,210

Information about operating segment profit or
loss, assets and liabilities: (Continued)

e
555y
>oH

Total
TEL
HK$'000

37,173
(17,084)
127
(2,194)
5,673

(843)
(5,635)

(243)

528
3,671

47

59,711
33,034
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Lr

10. D EPE X ()
DEBURA R HE 2 2 WER ¢

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or

loss:
2022%F 20214
2022 2021
FTExT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
KA Revenue
k5NN Total revenue of reportable segments 114,637 37,173
A WA Consolidated revenue 114,637 37,173
B Profit or loss
o E 4B IE Total profit or loss of reportable
segments (14,568) (17,084)
AN ek Unallocated amounts:
1THEH Administrative expenses (139) (160)
M E U A Interest revenue 152 727
FEZ Interest expense (1,406) (2,194)
BT 45 B Government subsidies 2,050 5,673
HEZB W= Gain on lease modifications = 528
FEH (B5R) ha Net exchange (loss)/gain (673) 3,671
H fib 2Rk 55 Bid WA Other unallocated income 504 79
FEZEERE Consolidated loss for the year (14,080) (8,760)
PHEENMEB2YIR:  Reconciliations of segment assets
and liabilities:
BE Assets
o Eb AR A B Total assets of reportable segments 21,740 59,711
RITRIE S &R Bank and cash balances 31,730 21,467
HEBEE Consolidated total assets 53,470 81,595
aE Liabilities
DEf A B E Total liabilities of reportable segments 19,018 33,034
g5 N EH b fEA IR Trade and other payables 75 95
SEBEAE Consolidated total liabilities 19,093 33,129
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H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

1. WKEHR 1. FINANCE COSTS

20224 20214
2022 2021
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

HEARZMERX Interest expenses on lease liabilities
(H7a£19) (note 19) 438 2,082

SRERNRIREERZ Interest on loan from the ultimate

B parent 948 112
HERBHZ Imputed interest expense 20 -
1,406 2,194

12.

FiEHER

2. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

F P N £ [ 770 5 P 118 4 & 19 3F 4 8 SR
i3 Al - B b ZE B B B RS AR
EH -HAEALSEENRANIBERZ
MEBWAERMNE SIAH TR -

AREBERBMEMK ZHEBAREAE
1225 % 89 B 3= B 4908 N BT 15 m(2021
F 1 26%)°

RERMAPSHERBRRERE B
REMEGRER ZBRHRABELS
BRAOT ¢

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required
since the Group has no assessable profit for both
years. The tax expenses represented withholding tax
paid for intra-group loan interest income in
Australia.

The Group’s subsidiary incorporated in Australia
was subject to Australian income tax at a rate of
25% (2021: 26%).

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before tax per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income is
shown as follows:

2022%F 20214
2022 2021
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B B4 A1 B3 18 Loss before tax (13,776) (8,517)
BEBMEHFEE16.5%  Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
(20214 : 16.5%) 16.5% (2021: 16.5%)
.ﬁr {2 IR (2,273) (1,405)
HBARBMIWAZHEZE  Tax effect of income that are not
taxable (1,218) (2,304)
TR FBEHIRFIES B 2 Tax effect of expenses that are not
MBS deductible 1,579 1,038
AERTIBEB 2 FHIEFZE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 1,442 2,992
TEHAEH Withholding tax 304 243
M@ ARl fEE b A # & Effect of different tax rates of a
RETRAMRzZE subsidiary operating in other
jurisdiction 470 (321)
FEHER Income tax expense 304 243
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

12. FTBHEHR (&)

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

RBEEHRAEEHEFJHABE
BHERR BN z2E KRB AHEEE
18 #49241,935,0005# 7T (20214 :
239,676,000/8 7T) ° A R BEHEE K
s F SRR - B s R B) B R IB
B3 18 #9241,935,0005%8 7T (20214 :
239,676,000 L) R ELER EHE
EoASE i ARESHZHIEEIE
RAWEEARBEEBERTE EMEFE
ZFTEEIBR ER AL o

13. FEFIE

13.

At the end of the reporting period the Group has
unused tax losses of HK$241,935,000 (2021:
HK$239,676,000) available for offsetting against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of HK$241,935,000 (2021:
HK$239,676,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The aforesaid unused tax
losses of the Group have not yet been agreed by
respective tax authorities. All tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely for both years.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

AEBFEBERENSR, GEA) AT

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after

&I8 charging/(crediting) the following:
2022F 20214
2022 2021
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Z B A 2 B & Auditor’s remuneration 504 450
BIEEREMN Building management fee and rates 4,513 5,014
BERFEEZKA Cost of inventories consumed 12,766 11,644
=2 N Construction cost 66,363 -
e Depreciation
— W HE KRR — property, plant and equipment 927 843
—FRAELE - right-of-use assets 2,394 5,635
BB Impairment loss on
—ME - WEREE — property, plant and equipment 1,890 -
—PRAREEE - right-of-use assets 3,110 -
HEZE W Gain on lease modifications - (528)
8 TR 7 Staff costs 19,186 18,682
mEEEH S Short-term lease rentals 6,230 3,220
FIE B R (M) Net exchange loss/(gain) 673 (3,671)
NAEERBERER Utilities and cleaning expenses 3,557 3,580

1 2 O G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT
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14. EEEANEX

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

2022%F 20214

2022 2021

FERT FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

e~ O ROERL Salaries, bonuses and allowances 18,544 18,014
RIRAE A ET B Retirement benefits scheme

contributions 642 668

19,186 18,682

AUBEEHEMAL
AEESSHFMZRELALH  HAF
POz (20214F : OfZ) B AR B HTT
EX(EMeR TXMEI15REE) -
BT —fI AL (20215 : —f1) 2 &
EemT :

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group
during the year included four (2021: four) directors
whom emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 15. The emoluments of the
remaining one (2021: one) individual are set out
below:

20225 20214

2022 2021

FET TFET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fre MoERL Salaries and allowances 329 287

ZMe BN T E

The emoluments fell within the following band:

20224 20214

2022 2021

A A

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

0/& 7T £ 1,000,000/ 7T HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 1

KM ER - AR BB E R KB RERA
BEEXDABZRFMALIAME -
IAfR 8 B AE A DDA SR I AR 5 B B
REBNL 2 F1E -

RRFER - HERENETAMNE -

2021/22 Annual Report 4 %§

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the employees of the Group or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office for
both years.

None of the employees has waived any emoluments
for both years.
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#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

15. ESmARER

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

EEc#E

SREEHHMOT -

Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director is set as below:

REAALERES (FRAFDAAENEAT)
FRftRESAREKNMNE
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

EXEK
e H&  BAHBHR BEEEE b
Employer's
contribution to
a retirement Housing
Fees Salaries benefit scheme allowance Total
THR ThR THr THR Thr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HiTEE: Executive directors:
BRELE Mr. Cheng Hop Fai
(fTH#E%) (Chief Executive) - 240 - 900 1,140
grmat Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy - 360 18 - 378
LSl e Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita = 720 18 = 738
BHBLt Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily - 480 18 - 498
BUFHTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
BEBEE Mr. Law Toe Ming ) - - - 7
R Mr. Leung Tai Chiu* 16 - - - 16
ki Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew 7 - - - n
REERE Mr. Yuen Shiu Cheong, Johnny* 56 - - - 56
ANEM Total for 2022 216 1,800 54 90 2970

*  RA2021F6A23B B 2B IR ITE

>

’* R2021F6 A23B EZ(E 2B IEATT

5=

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

* Resigned as INED on 23 June 2021

& Appointed as INED on 23 June 2021
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15. EERAN RER ()

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

EEsoME (&) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
REMALIERES (FRAAATIENBAA)
Rt R E N AR RN E
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
BRI
fe Fe  BAGEIMR FERK it
Employer's
contribution to
a retirement Housing
Fees Salaries  benefit scheme allowance Total
TER TER TEL TER TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
UnEs: Executive directors:
gaBrd Mr. Cheng Hop Fai
(fTHEH) (Chief Executive) - 200 - 900 1,100
gamnt Ms. Cheng Pak Ming, Judy - 360 18 - 378
gafat Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita - 720 18 - 738
gEBExt Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily - 480 18 - 498
BUFHTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
BERLE Mr. Law Toe Ming 72 - - - 72
REHBEE Mr. Leung Tai Chiu 72 - - - 72
REEEE Mr. Hung Chi Yuen, Andrew 72 - - - 72
2021545 Total for 2021 216 1,760 54 900 2,930

THRAESIKERNESHRBELAFE
MEEAHM (20214 : &) -

RAFE AKEMERATEFNESES
NS - DAGRfEE AR I0 A ER B 3K
RINAR KB AER/RERL 2 FE -

2021/22 Annual Report 4 %§

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors
waived any emoluments during the year (2021:
HK$Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

16. R E 16. DIVIDEND
RABRF AL ER NSRS No dividend has been paid or declared by the
(20214 : £&) - Company during the year (2021: HK$Nil).

17. BREE 17. LOSS PER SHARE
FARER R EEEE JIRIE A T E The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is

based on the following:

2022%F 20214
2022 2021
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Loss
RAERERE(EEE Loss attributable to owners
of the Company (14,080) (8,760)
BRHHE Number of shares
FARstEEREAREIEZ  Weighted average number of
B AR N T 8 ordinary shares for the purpose
(K1:) of calculating basic loss
per share (Note) 1,946,314,108 1,946,314,108
it - Note:
KRR EMFZEREWSEBEHEL B There was no dilutive potential ordinary share for the
% e Company’s share option for both years.

12/  G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHE EEERA 2021/22 Annual Report £
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A SRR MY EE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BRRBERE HRIE ok
Furniture and
restaurant Leasehold
equipment  improvements Total
TET TEL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RE Cost
F202054A1H At 1 April 2020 14,901 - 14,901
NE Additions 47 - 47
- Write off 21 = (21)
M2021E3A318 & At 31 March 2021 and
20214718 1 April 2021 14,927 - 14,927
NE Additions 1,128 7,149 8,277
it 8 Write off (5,985) = (5,985)
$202243H318 At 31 March 2022 10,070 7,149 17,219
RIAERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
20204818 At 1 April 2020 11,560 - 11,560
FAXE (HiE13) Charge for the year (note 13) 843 - 843
i Write off 1) = 1)
R202143A318 & At 31 March 2021 and
202154418 1 April 2021 12,382 - 12,382
FAXW (HiE13) Charge for the year (note 13) 519 408 927
WiE (#fit13) Impairment (note 13) 258 1,632 1,890
it 8 Write off (3,980) = (3,980)
®202243H318 At 31 March 2022 9,179 2,040 11,219
EHE Carrying amount
R2022463H31H8 At 31 March 2022 891 5,109 6,000
R202143H318 At 31 March 2021 2,545 - 2,545

2021/22 Annual Report 4 %§
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

18. 1% ~ BB &ME (&)

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

BREKZAELBEMNATKE S
BOERERTRABERELFTHE
MEREBEMEE - RASREZX
FEANEIERRSANFENITR
RERER AEENRREXER-
REE R AR R B IS8 S R
EE A AT (h N 3R & E A B AR E R
RH PRI RAFH TR K - IR XK
ARRSESAEUREEBAEDR
MEBTFPOREERRXSEMRE - HE
EMNRREXBNRBEBERRNE
MG HRSER -

AEBEBRBEESHEZEZFTHRIE
B GEREAEXBHEVEES
THIBZIBSR=TEN - WK F & H
R FE1.6% (20214F : 2.15% ) Hy 1%
X -ZLETHBAMRBMENFEY
RHER -

BERRASEZBEEXKEE 2B
HASERSRENITIE R E10.69%
(20214 : 12.31%) ©

T A = ol =1 I G R
15,409,000/ L c AR IR ELEE
UHAKESBEERDE BE X
RELRTRAEEESENEEDE
MR E E2022F3A318 It FEEE
FomE BELRERERES
7l 1 5208 {8 &5 18 491,890,000/% 7T &
3,110,000 T M e ELBENE
Eo

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

The recoverable amounts of the restaurant
operation cash generating unit (“CGU”) have been
determined on the basis of their value in use using
discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions
for the discounted cash flow method are those
regarding the discount rate, growth rate and
budgeted gross margin and revenue during the
period. The Group estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGU. The growth rates are based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical
area in which the businesses of the CGU operate.
Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based on
past performance and expectations on market
development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived
from the most recent financial budgets approved by
the directors over the remaining lease term of the
leased properties of restaurant operation with the
residual period using the growth rate of 1.6%
(2021: 2.15%). This rate does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant
markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows
from the Group’s operating restaurant activities are
10.69% (2021: 12.31%).

Accordingly, a total recoverable amount of
HK$15,409,000 was estimated. As the recoverable
amount of CGU is lower than the respective
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, impairment losses of
approximately HK$1,890,000 and HK$3,110,000
were recognised on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets in the profit or loss for the
year ended 31 March 2022 so arising from the
CGU, respectively.

2021/22 Annual Report %R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

HEWE

Lease

properties

FHET

HK$

7202044 A1 8 At 1 April 2020 37,677
e (Hit13) Depreciation (note 13) (5,635)
HEBEM®R Lease modifications (31,341)
MR R aE Transfer from prepayments 1,095
720214 3HA31H %2021F4818 At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 1,796
NE Addition 14,514
e Hit13) Depreciation (note 13) (2,394)
EIEM L Termination of lease (1,095)
BE (K71:E13) Impairment (note 13) (3,110)
72022434318 At 31 March 2022 9,711

MN2022F3A31H  HEBBD
13,263,00058 7T (20214F : 565,000/
JC) N AR 8 E A #E & E 4914,514,000

77T (20214F £ 524,000 7T ) #HER ©

EREEEZNEEHN

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$13,263,000
(2021: HK$565,000) are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$14,514,000
(2021: HK$524,000) as at 31 March 2022.

Depreciation expenses on

right-of-use assets

HERBEZMEFAX
(BREMKER)
HEHHERMER

HEEEEEME
BERZER (B
EHMWEEER)

Interest expense on lease liabilities
(included in finance costs)

Expenses relating to short-term lease

Expenses relating to leases of low
value assets (included in other
operating expenses)

20225
2022
TRERT
HK$’000

2,394

438
6,230

20214
2021

THETT
HK$'000
5,635
2,082

3,220

30
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

19. EHEEE (&)

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

HERS ML AR FBEHTIN M T
33(b) °

REMEFE ASEBEETHEY
XEREERE HEARKEE
FESEMHIP(2021F  1F)5]x - M
ERFEEREHGEN  ETPEEERE
N (B 69 {6 R AN R 1 o T2 R TE A8 BA RN AT
AR 2 AR - AEEERE
FHERLETEESRITHITHEHR -

EREEE 2 REFAFBHIINH

Details of total cash outflow for leases are set out
in note 33(b).

For both years, the Group has various leased
properties for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 5 years
(2021: 1 year). Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable.

Details of the impairment assessment of right-of-use

$18° assets are disclosed in note 18.
20. 78 20. INVENTORIES
20225 20214
2022 2021
TExT FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B R ek Food and beverage 768 948

21. EXR{LLERIBRA

21. CAPITALISED CONTRACT COSTS

R2021F3A318 2B XA R KA
HAREBEMBAE TR BEFERIZ
HEEEHZENYERRERS
8o — BB B EH/NEE KL - AR
TFEIE R MBEENATEBBIRE
BREETEREZMMLERZZNH
BT MERETEABHNTEE - 4
B W TH AREEERNE
b ZME¥EMBEEE RE E£202293
A31BLEFERK + ERMEKARRE
F2022F3A3MBIEFEMNERER

1 2 8 G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

Contract costs capitalised as 31 March 2021 related
to a property development project which the Group
entered into a development and management
agreement with a connected party in prior year. A
project control group had been formed to make all
strategic decisions relating to the conduct of the
development of the project, including but not
limited to the consideration and approval of
proposed development programme and budgets,
contracts, agreements or arrangements in
connection with the development works, and
changes to the sales price. The property
development project was completed during the year
ended 31 March 2022 and the capitalised costs
were recognised in profit or loss as cost of sales for
the year ended 31 March 2022.
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22. ES R HMEWRIE

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2021/22 Annual Report 4 %§

20224 20214
2022 2021
FHET FBTT
HK$'000 HK$'000

KEBEERZ2ES Trade receivables from restaurant
FE U SRR operations = 87

FEBCHET (BEET]) Goods and service tax (“GST")

receivable - 1,912
H fth e U 218 Other receivables 1,319 1,289
1,319 3,288

BEEBRERZURSNERRER -

AEBFHGRTHMEFPNEERR
60K ° AEE S REMBEH EREE
EUFIR - E=TEEHETAMRE -

B2 RESIRRBEZEHLMEGR
BRIRBRERZEREOTAT

0260H 0 to 60 days

Most of the restaurant customers settle in cash and
credit cards.

The credit terms of the Group granted to other
customers were 60 days on average. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables from
restaurant operations, based on the invoice date,
and net of allowance, is as follows:

2022F 20214
2022 2021
FHBxT F& T
HK$’000 HK$'000
= 87

M2022E3 8310 2 B2 @ E{E &
BEZEWE SRR (2021F : ) -

AEBRAERELEERT A TMIE
o FTAE SRR B TIIE -

As of 31 March 2022, no trade receivables from
restaurant operations were past due but not
impaired (2021: HK$Nil).

The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. All trade receivables from restaurant
operations are denominated in HK$.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

23. MAVEHFAEMEE RS 2K 23.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI

EIA
20224 20214
2022 2021
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BAFEZREES Equity securities, at fair value
EBLTRE Listed in Hong Kong 1,131 1,256
DA Analysed as:
mENE E Current assets 1,131 1,256

RSN ATEERENNEAR
1% o

BAFESAEEE RS 2 BET
BAETTHIE

24. ERHIRITER 24.

The fair values of the listed securities are based on
current bid prices.

Equity investments at FVTOCI are denominated in
HK$.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

AEBEBFRITZERDIERET
BITRTASEBHEKERSER
E7EE - DEBRTFERERER
202263 A31B IEFEMRK -

The Group’s pledged bank deposits represented
deposits pledged to banks to secure letter of
guarantee of utility deposits for some of the
Group's restaurant operations granted by certain
banks. The pledged bank deposits were released
during the year ended 31 March 2022.

25. EZ R HMENFKIE 25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2022% 20214
2022 2021
THET FA7T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B S ENRIE (H:E) Trade payables (note) 1,013 2,391
H b FE < 5RIE Other payables 1,468 2,181
FE & R A AR Contract costs payables = 3,211
BERAN Reinstatement costs 1,149 1,269
REAARIS FES I8 Long service payables 2,200 3,400
5,830 12,452
G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BREREEERAT 2021/22 Annual Report 3k
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H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

o5 BE N EHMENATIE (&) 25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Ktz - Note:
BIEWERBBRME 2 E S ENRIBEEER D The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of
T receipt of goods, is as follows:
20224 20214
2022 2021
THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$’'000
0£60H 0 to 60 days 167 2,286
60H X Over 60 days 846 105
1,013 2,391
AT : Analysed as:
20225 20214
2022 2021
THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
mBAE Current liabilities 5,830 12,452
FMEE S EMNREHABITTIIE - All trade payables are denominated in HK$.

26. REERAB AT ZEE 26. LOAN FROM THE ULTIMATE PARENT
KERKRESATIZEZAEERE The loan from the ultimate parent was unsecured,
;o BB E M EK5%E B - W 2022 interest bearing at 5% per annum, and was fully
F3F3NH I FEEREEE o repaid during the year ended 31 March 2022.

2021/22 Annual Report 4k G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BNEREEERAT | 3]
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#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

27. HEEE 27. LEASE LIABILITIES
EEREMNR EERENRZAE
Minimum lease Present value of minimum
payments lease payments
20225 20215 20225 2001%
2022 2021 2022 2021
THRT TET THAT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—&R Within one year 3,040 585 2,443 565
LR—F THRBRE More than one year, but not
exceeding two years 3,310 = 2,843 =
SR_F MEBRLEF More than two years, but not
exceeding five years 8,480 = 1977 -
14,830 585 13,263 565
B ARBBER Less: Future finance charges (1,567) (20) N/A N/A
HERTHNRA Present value of lease obligations 13,263 565 13,263 565
B EENEAREENER Less: Amount due for settlement
(BRERDER) within 12 months (shown under
current liabilities) (2,443) (565)
T[RRI BERNFE Amount due for settlement
after 12 months 10,820 =

BRAREE/MNETHIE S ERF
R A5% (20214 M FR7.50% =
11.71%) ©

MEHRERBEYABITINE °

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to liabilities were 5.00% (2021: ranged
from 7.50% to 11.71%).

All lease liabilities are denominated in HK$.
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ire SRR R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

28. A 28. SHARE CAPITAL
2022 20214
2022 2021
FHExT FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
VAT Authorised:
5,000,000,0005& A% E (& 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
0108 T2 E B HK$0.1 each 500,000 500,000
BETRER Issued and fully paid:
1,946,314,108 =K E B 1,946,314,108 ordinary shares of
0.10% T 2 E A HK$0.1 each 194,631 194,631

AEEEREANBERRHEEARE
RERKEMREN LB BB(CEBMN
BERBERRGIZADE -

AEBIZREBRLIIREERNSHE - K
SEREBELERNNECMBEEE
MEBRFREKEEEANEEIL L HE
THREBE - RTHERAABELRER
AREEAIEE AEREMN » BT
i CERE - BNFES BO
BEEHRILEEEARDER

AEERBERES L REEEAR -
ZH R BIRAR AR EETE - IR
REBBREBA - RO B BMEA
&1 e

REEME—RIMNBIEINE B A BRK
2 BRFEEBIMAN LT ¥R
BEZEL25%NRARFTFRE -

AEBEBAFUMIKERHBEE
REEREARMEZNORSE - ZW
EETTHEARERE YAERBT
EENAHEBT25%HREE - 720224
3A318 » #B3i825% (20214 : BB
25%) KRB RREESR o

2021/22 Annual Report 3k

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeqguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maximise the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion
to risk. The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the payment of dividends, issue new shares,
buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing
debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
shareholders equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as
total share equity divided by total assets. Total share
equity comprises share capital, retained profits and
other reserves.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for
the Group is in order to maintain its listing on the
Stock Exchange, it has to have a public float of at
least 25% of the issued shares.

The Group receives a report from the share
registrars monthly on substantial share interests
showing the non-public float and it demonstrates
continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year. As at 31 March 2022, over
25% (2021: over 25%) of the shares were in public
hands.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

29. KRB BN KRR R

P 29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) AATHBARR K

(a) Statement of financial position of the

Company
2022%F 20214
2022 2021
B 5 FTHExT FETT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
kREBEE Non-current assets
NI = Investments in subsidiaries - -
B ARz EUEIE  Amounts due from
subsidiaries - _
RBEE Current assets
WITRBE S & Bank and cash balances 179 181
REEE Current liabilities
fEsTE A Accruals 15 15
RBEEFEE Net current assets 164 166
EEFHE Net assets 164 166
EXR#HE Capital and reserves
R& 2 Share capital 28 194,631 194,631
Gkl Reserves 29(b) (194,467) (194,465)
RREE Total equity 164 166

MN2022F6 B30 EE =2 #t
O BEBRTIHEFEARES

BEE
CHENG Hop Fai

BE&

CHENG Pak Man, Anita

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 June
2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

2021/22 Annual Report £k



A SRR MY EE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

29. KN TR REBRFHEESH (F) 29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
(b) AR TEEEE (b) Reserve movement of the Company
R EE RAiE Eﬁﬂﬁ?&ﬁ%ﬁ 2R 5
Share
Share Capital option  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
(%/7530@)/)) (Haz30))
(note 30(b)(i)  (note 30(b)ii))

TAL TAL THEL THEL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R202054R1R t 1 April 2020 88,794 113,143 2,906 (399,306) (194,463)
FEER Loss for the year - - - 2) 2)

R20211E3A318 & At 31 March 2021 and
2021F4R18 1 April 2021 88,794 113,143 2,906 (399,308) (194,465)
FEER Loss for the year - - - ) 2)
BRELN Lapse of share option - - (186) 186 =
72022437318 At 31 March 2022 88,794 113,143 2,720 (399,124) (194,467)

30. & 30. RESERVES
(a) x5KH (a) Group

AREBZRFESHENEEDFE The amounts of the Group’s reserves and

%@E’\Z?/:HE & N E b 2 [ W e R

BRESEEHEK -

(b) REEZMHERRAR

(i) ReEE

BRERELIENBAESRM
ENERZEITREMEEN
wE RO RERNERX
BRE(—NAN—FRRE)

4% -

2021/22 Annual Report 4 %§

movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in
excess of their par value per share. The
application of the share premium account
is governed by the Companies Act 1981 of

Bermuda.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

30. & (&)

30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) BEZHERAR (&)

(i) BR*#E
AEBKRARFHEZHR
1992F10AETTHNEEEH
MELH - RAREHEREAR
B 1T /O B AN &Y 48 T {8 B Y
BRARMNBRANEEARREZ
RIEVERE -

(iii) EZ #FE
EXFEHEEREBRESINE
B &R A R 15 mA M E LM
P IMNEZ 5 - R IRIEAR
B BRI EANE 2
AR °

31. BB EET &

31.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group arose as a
result of the group reorganisation in
October 1992. It represents the difference
between the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital issued by the Company in
exchange for the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of subsidiaries.

(iii) Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the consolidated financial
statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

RN T FR2010F5 108 4 2 B I
w58l (1201051 31) 7£2020E5 48
HEIH - A& KR2020F8 A3 H £
TZREBRFRE FERERZBB
Hsh e st 2l ([ 202051 81 ) 82
20105128l - # M [5H381)) - 1R#%2010
B RBE— S ZERETIEM -
R R AR ITEIR20105T 8% H
MBS EE T WITE  BAXE
EIZIERURBEBBAER AR
NA (B &S EMBRAN(T £
RAN) FE17EFTAR o BrIERHE2020
T8I T 2 BRI E L LE - BRI2020
B2 EMHAESEE2030F8A3H A
JJ: °

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

The Company adopted a share option scheme on
10 May 2010 (the “2010 Scheme”) which expired
on 8 May 2020. By a shareholders’ resolution
passed at the annual general meeting held on 3
August 2020, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the “2020 Scheme”, and, together
with the 2010 Scheme, the “Schemes”). No further
share options may be offered under the 2010
Scheme. However, any outstanding share options
granted under the 2010 Scheme shall continue to
be exercisable subject to the rules of the 2010
Scheme and the provisions of Chapter 17 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). Unless terminated
earlier in accordance with the rules of the 2020
Scheme, the 2020 Scheme shall be valid and
effective until 3 August 2030.

2021/22 Annual Report %R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT E (&)

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

2010518l 2 B D ER A T EERZ
B3 7 AHE N B BT 3% BB AR T A
BB

(@) AEEEMKEXAEEKE
ERppER ENER(REE
€l HEAEEXES (B
WITES FRATESFRBUFE
MITESE)

by XAEBEEIMKEXRETRAKREE
BZEAER - BXEMR FX
RE K2 #A88 BEF =
mE/ARGRES  REER
H-EFRUBETRAERENREA
ITHASESIREER (RFIE
) 1E H 2 B BUR 5201051 &) 1
BREER K&

(0 EFEETAECEIBTER/A
SEIREER (RFER) L
BRAIZEMRAL -

20205t 8l EMREAARIMARE
BEMEBxBES &aTHA
B EREEBABRESE (BEAEL
FRITESE) TEREUALRESTZ
EPERBBRECEHAEE 2 X5 - %
BRAEREHERMERNEEBRM -
BAA HER EEEAIHEBRL
BAE  ERBEIER  LEER
RAREHASEED 2R © 2020
R A ER2EERERAR A
HEREARZ 2 HEE LAERATE

2
5

(a) BBAER2EED/AEENG
MmBFAERREER K&
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The purpose of the 2010 Scheme is to recognise the
commitments and contributions of the following
eligible participants by granting options to them as
incentives or rewards:

(@) any employee or director (including executive
director, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive director) of any
member of the Group or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds an equity
interest (the “Invested Entity"”);

(b) any advisor, consultant, professional, agent,
contractor, customer, provider of goods and/or
services, business or joint-venture partner of
any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity whom the Board in its sole discretion
considers eligible for the 2010 Scheme on the
basis of his or her contribution to the Group or
the Invested Entity (as the case may be); and

() any person whom the Board in its sole
discretion considers has contributed or will
contribute to the Group or to the Invested
Entity (as the case may be).

The purpose of the 2020 Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to any full-time or
part-time employees, chief executives, officers or
directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Group, substantial shareholders
and any professional advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and distributors who, in the sole opinion
of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to
the business affairs, development and growth of the
Group as incentives or rewards to recognise and
acknowledge their contributions to the Group. The
2020 Scheme will provide the eligible participants
an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with the view to achieving the following
objectives:

(a) to motivate the eligible participants to optimise
their performance efficiency for the benefit of
the Group; and

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

i

31. lBIRERTE ()

.

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b) W3l - BBIAEMHTANELF
RS ARBE s REZRSE
NMZEERB2EERGHERD
BAR

M2022%63A31H * KR AR E 5+ 2
8] AR 4 17 {5 2 B IR 7 /228,000,0004%
(20214 : 30,000,000) * 16 A& 2 7 3%
HEBETRMBEL1.4% (20214
1.5%) °

BAE20205T &I A] B 2 BERRRERR D 48
HE Al B H194,631,4100% © K%
AR20205t BB TR AT B BEITR
RZ10%  HELIMGREE— Tt
HEEBRIN - REFTE  TEEEE
KRITFE 2 BRIERITERAEITZR
MEE  EEE FRAERERUK
NEPREEITRAN 230% 5 £ °

B 3520105 2 7120205t 81 & 8 2 5t
B BRAARFRIZERNES -2
THRABRFTEREXBESESBEZE
BB A LR HBRER - ARG

RAIFTEBYIERNTESHE - WHE
AARMEERRKBILIERITES
REESAZAMBBALE K
HERE 2EHANRAAEERE
HEXZHEREBALTERSBE
R BREETERTET RS
FRITZARNRKRG @ AFF@BBARA
BIE BTN 20.1% @ HIREBEERE B
& T B 5T & 2 4B 815,000,000
BT BINBEESARAIREZEL
k£ - W BAR$E201051 81 K -8 8
EETNZARRBEALTEARERE
AR 202051 8l 2 AR A - HEFE A
TRIBELETRBERETARARME
BOBEATARLEREREZER A
Al — R B RE o
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(b) to attract, retain or otherwise maintain an
on-going business relationship with the eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long-term growth of the
Group.

At 31 March 2022, the Company had 28,000,000
(2021: 30,000,000) share options outstanding
under the Schemes, which represented
approximately 1.4% (2021: 1.5%) of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2020 Scheme
shall not in aggregate exceed 194,631,410 shares
(approximately 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the time the 2020 Scheme was
established) unless further shareholders’ approval
has been obtained. The overall limit in the number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Schemes shall not exceed 30% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

Pursuant to each of the 2010 Scheme and the 2020
Scheme, each grant of options to any director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or any of their respective associates,
must be approved by all independent non-executive
directors of the Company. Where any grant of
options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the
Company, or any of their respective associates,
would result in the shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted or to be granted to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of
such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue and having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of such grant, in excess of
HK$5,000,000, such further grant of options must
be approved by the shareholders of the Company,
with the connected persons (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of the Company abstaining from
voting pursuant to the 2010 Scheme, or with the
grantee(s), his associates and all core connected
persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company abstaining from voting in favour pursuant
to the 2020 Scheme.
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31. lBRERTE ()

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

X L E AR - RE20105 & A0
202051 &% 8 25T & - REM12{E A
HEAS2EERRAFER ZBR
BB (BRETERERTEZRE
PetE)  MEITEERET RS T %
TZBRMNEE  TABBAAFE %
TN Z1% - EAE-—FREER
it ERRZ BB RCAE - AEVSBURAL A&
Mz E2mENEBE AT AR IR

ERR -

BE20105TEIRE 2 BREEB EL
HE30BEANEmMERER - KHEBE
DA RE - BIE202051 2 -
AARREBA B EBE30MEE ¥ B ALK
BlRARAERZBEKEZENABE
BEZZHOXHFIANERN FARA
Z100B T A RERBEARTHE
Kz REER BRENKRESHRT
ARAL B ERK -

BREREASIZITEETT IR
T=FFz&a®E  ((ZEREBK
#zB EfA@EZEXBARE KD
EBXMEBRARERMARFHET
B:()REBEHNB(ARKEXR)ARF
Pin R R P A MERAR M
& KA QR IRMDEE -

RS EFSBYABITREM
REMSEBRT KL BRETE
2EE  Rit 2 AZABAEE
RAERKREEXATHERE K
RAOKHEABEITELBRRE -
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Subject to the aforesaid, pursuant to each of the
2010 Scheme and the 2020 Scheme, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue. Any further grant of options in excess of the
limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval
with such participant and his associate abstaining
from voting.

Options granted under the 2010 Scheme had to be
accepted in writing within 30 days from the date of
offer. No consideration was payable on grant of
option. Pursuant to the 2020 Scheme, an option
shall be deemed to have been granted to the
grantee and to have taken effect when the
duplicate offer document constituting acceptance of
the offer for such option duly signed by the
grantee, together with a non-refundable remittance
in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof, is received by
the Company within 30 business days after the date
of offer.

The exercise price under the Schemes of the option
shares shall at least be the highest of (i) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; (ii) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer, which shall be a business day; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company.

Pursuant to the Schemes, a share option may be
granted to any participant by the Board at its
absolute discretion and subject to any conditions as
it may think fit. Save for this, there is neither any
performance targets that need to be achieved by
the grantee nor any minimum period for which a
share option must be held before a share option
can be exercised.
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#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

31. BT & (&)

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

REFTE  AZXAAREFEEER
WA AT EIE AT ERRE - Bt
HETGEETF(ARLBRERE
ETFHARR-—REXBAR/L) -

RIRET BIR 2 R8I

HEBHE

A & 72022463 A31H Kk202143A°
3VH 2 EERE ST

Pursuant to the Schemes, a share option may be
exercised by the grantee at any time during a period
determined and notified by the Board of Directors
provided that such period shall be not more than 10
years commencing from the date of grant and
expiring on the last business day of such 10-year
period.

Details of movements in the share options granted
under the Schemes and the balances at 31 March
2022 and 31 March 2021 are set out below:

R2020 R20215 20228
4818 RER 4818 RER 3A31A
28% Rit A H T8 SROGE  HATE ANIHE  HAGE AHIHE  HAGE
Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding
Exercise as at expired as at expired as at
price per 1 April during 1 April during 31 March
Participants Date of grant Exercisable period share 2020 the year 2021 the year 2022
(Hiita) BT (Hitc)
(note a) HK$ (note ¢)
5% 017610838 201751082382
20258108228
Directors 23 October 2017 23 October 2017 to 0.177 28,000,000 - 28,000,000  (2,000,000) 26,000,000
22 October 2025
£3/ER 017F10ABA  2017510A3A%
(W) 2025510A228
Director/Consultant 23 October 2017 23 October 2017 to 0.177 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
(note b) 22 October 2025
TREETE
Exercisable at the end of the year 30,000,000 - 30,000,000  (2,000,000) 28,000,000

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

2021/22 Annual Report £k



ire SRR R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. lBRERTE ()

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(@) M2017F10F23EREBEREE R 2
1 E 5 A T 1E A2,906,0007 7T o %
B HIR120176 108238 A BB K
B IEABEM30% - BRELEN
3 4N30%5% B 7R 20184108230 - H
#40%57 B R2019F10A230 - B2
B HI AT A A B B9 H T B A0.177

AT e

(b) ZBREHRAN2019F6518HE LB
IENITERIWRK AR -

() REEMBIELEN2021F6823HEEBL
JEHITES -

ANEBREE202283A318 LFE

EEAARNRBENBREMERE
Fﬁ(zoz1¢ ﬂﬁ) RRERN-XE
B IR AT - R ELE=2022F3 A31
B IE 4 E - 2,000,0000% & A% 4% £ 2%
(20214 : &) -
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Notes:

(a) The total estimated fair value at the date of grant of the
share options on 23 October 2017 was HK$2,906,000.
30% of total number of the share options were vested
immediately on the date of grant, 23 October 2017.
30% of total number of the share options were vested
on 23 October 2018 and the remaining 40% were
vested on 23 October 2019. The closing price of the
Company's share immediately before the date of grant
was HK$0.177.

(b)  Mr. Mark Yiu Tong, William resigned as an INED and

acted as a consultant with effect from 18 June 2019.

() Mr. Leung Tai Chi resigned as an INED with effect from
23 June 2021.

The Group did not recognize the expenses for the
year ended 31 March 2022 in relation to share
options granted by the Company (2021: HK$Nil).
No share options were exercised and granted for
both years. 2,000,000 share options lapsed during
the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).
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#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

2. TEWWEB AT 32. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
HE2022F3A31B 2T ENBE R A Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31
== (N March 2022 are as follows:

AL/ BEZROEN/  ADAFRERS
£H EXHE BRTRAZEE RaEEzhl  FEER
Class of shares Proportion of
Place of held/nominal nominal value of
incorporation/ value of issued issued share capital
Name operation share capital  held by the Company  Principal activities
BRRE
Directly held:
CCC Holdlings (BVI) Limited LERAEE/ER Lk 100% BEER
187,325,513 %L
CCC Holdings (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Investment holding
("BVI")/Hong Kong HK$187,325,513
FRERA -
Indirectly held:
CCC Investments (BV) Limited LERAEE/ R LRRIET 100% RELR
CCC Investments (BVI) Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
BB ERERERAR 95 ERRI00ET (BRFHE 100% REEERK
JERERR10,000%7T) *
City Chiu Chow Management & Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 Provision of management
Consultants Company Limited (Non-voting deferred services
HK$10,000)*
AMBEEBR LA B LBRI00ET (ERFE 100% BEEE
€ $%2,000,000% ) *
City Chiu Chow Restaurant Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 Restaurant operations
(Non-voting deferred
HK$2,000,000)*
AENBEERRAT &R EBRI00ET (BREE 100% geEg
JETE 6,000,000 7T) *
Hover City Chiu Chow Restaurant Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 Restaurant operations
Limited (Non-voting deferred
HK$6,000,000)*
ERERERAA B EARI00ET (BRFHE 100% REEE
JE € 120,000,000/ ) *
Honcert Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 Restaurant operations
(Non-voting deferred
HK$20,000,000)*
GV Australia Pty Ltd EM LBA%10,0008 T 100% NELR
GV Australia Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary AUD10,000 Property development

* The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to receive
notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting
and have no rights to dividends or to participate in any
distribution on winding up. These non-voting deferred
shares were indirectly held by the Company except for
1,200,000 non-voting deferred shares of Hover City
Chiu Chow Restaurant Limited and 4,000,000
non-voting deferred shares of Honcert Development
Limited which were owned by outside parties.

* B EREEREE A EEWREE M
REREBENLEEEMBKRERNE K
RELRE - BEALEERIRRKRE
BB ESBEM DK © Br1,200,000
BEHEHBEBRAREREREEL
A% K& 4,000,0008% % g % & & [R A 7] &
RERELERBINAATHERI  E
B EERERELERYBAARRFME
BEREA -
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3. FEREMERME

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) METHELNAEBZHER

TRFAINAEEREESAMES
BEZEY BB RIRS
2H -MEERHELEZRETRE
ﬁiﬁfﬁ/mgjﬁkxfﬁimiﬁj\\$
SEGeReERERTOEAR
,\/Eébﬁizfﬁﬁumizg{ﬁ °

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

2015 FEHX R2022%
4B1H (W)  FRLEE BeER IANEERR REBH 3318
Interest Payment

1 April expenses of lease Lease 31 March

2021 (note 11) Non-cash Cash flows liabilities  modifications 2022

ThL Tin Tin FTin TAL Thn Tin

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RERRMWHEY) 565 438 13,689 - (1429) - 13,263

Lease liabilities (note 27)

REREBLNEZER 20,12 948 - (21,060) - - -
Loan from the ultimate parent

20,677 1,386 13,689 (21,060) (1,429 - 13,263

120208 HER R2001%

418 (Wi#1)  FE2HEER ReRE XMAREAE HEBH 3A318

Interest Payment

1 April £Xpenses of lease Lease 31 March

2020 (note 11) Non-cash Cash flows liabilities  modifications 2021

Thn TATL Tin Tin AL Fhr TAL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

REaRMWHEY) 40,856 2,082 (65) = (11,082) (31,226) 565

Lease liabilities (note 27)

RERERNTZER - 12 - 20,000 - - 20,112
Loan from the ultimate parent

40,856 2,19 (65) 20,000 (11,082) (31,226) 20,677

2021/22 Annual Report 4 %§
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#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

33. mEBEERERME (E)

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) AREEZRER LA
FeRERERTARNEEZS
BMERATRIE:

(b) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows for leases comprise the
following:

20224 20214
2022 2021
FTHERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REERSREN Within operating cash flows 6,668 5,237
RRERERE Within financing cash flows 991 9,065
7,659 14,302
ZELHRENTHEEER These amounts relate to the following:
2022%F 20214
2022 2021
FTHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EfNEE Lease rental paid 7,659 14,302

34. FARBE

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

2022938310 » 48 & B I (F {7
EARABE (20215 : £) o

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities at 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$Nil).

35, KEFHE L HE 35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
rEBERARA The Group as lessee

AEBETEHER BRAENREEE
ERIMEHELD - NEE B —FHB
B -—BAASHSFNRHEL - R
& B

20223 A31H S HAAE4

IO ENEHEEERMAR R

HHEEHEAEE -

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT

PN

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases
for restaurant, office and director’'s quarter. The
Group also entered into a long-term lease with 5
years lease term for a restaurant. As at 31 March
2022, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to

the portfolio of short-term leases to which the
short-term lease expense disclosed in note 19.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

36. B F 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) REAR  AEBRBINEREBR (a) During the year, the Group leased certain
~El([EFDERETHEEER properties for its restaurant operations from
R IAE 2 oo AR E 8 F YER Homley Development Limited (“Homley”).
2 & H#2,940,0008 T (B 1E Rentals charged by Homley during the year
660,000/ T & R %) (20214 amounted to HK$2,940,000 (including
3,200,000/8 7T (B23E51,120,0007% HK$660,000 rental concession) (2021:
THERE)) o 202243 A31 HK$3,200,000 (including HK$1,120,000 rental
H - HE% 1,080,000 T2 8 concession)). At 31 March 2022, rental deposit
RERBYWEHEERSH (2021 of HK$1,080,000 was included in current
£ : 1,080,000 TE BIEFELE R property rental deposits (2021: HK$1,080,000
BMEMEREP) - N202243 included in current property rental deposits). At
H318 » WR AR HESENT 31 March 2022, accrued rental payable to
SEF (20214 : 20,0008 7T) © Homley was HK$Nil (2021: HK$20,000).
% # £Golden Toy Investments Homley is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden
Limited ([ Golden Toyl) 2 & & Toy Investments Limited (“Golden Toy"”) whose
Bf/@ Q7 - MGolden ToyJyH — entire issued share capital is beneficially owned
HEEEEE2EESR  ZHEET by a discretionary trust the objects of which
ZEBABDEBEEEAE  BH include Mr. Cheng Hop Fai, Ms. Cheng Pak
Azt HEHXETRBEER Ming, Judy, Ms. Cheng Pak Man, Anita and
T ERARBZHTESIL R Ms. Cheng Pak Lai, Lily who are also executive
Kong Fai ' BIAE B HKZZERA directors of the Company and beneficial
RAICEmBES - owners of Kong Fai, the Company’s ultimate

holding company.
by RFRN AEBRZBEESR (b) During the year, the Group leased an unit of a

RAarl ([ A —FE%
¥R FRAKRz2EE A
900,000/ 7t (20214 : 900,000
BIT) o 202263 H31H »
E 12 £150,000/% T B BIEER
BWEREZRS S (20215
150,000 T B B IEE R B W %
MEZREF) o K20224F 2021
FI3IA3MB - WERBEEATHEEE
FF =M -

S 2Golden Toyz 2 EM B R
ﬁ} o

2021/22 Annual Report 3k

residential building from Hover City Industrial
Limited (“Hover City”). Rental charged by
Hover City during the year amounted to
HK$900,000 (2021: HK$900,000). At 31 March
2022, rental deposit of HK$150,000 was
included in current property rental deposits
(2021: HK$150,000 included in current
property rental deposits). At 31 March 2022
and 2021, no accrued rental was payable to
Hover City.

Hover City is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Golden Toy.

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BMNEREEERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H = 2022 & 3 A 31 HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

36. BEER S (1)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

O RER AEBRFERES
RARI (A% HERB—=87F
BYE FERFRKER A
% /1,200,000 7T (20214 :
1,200,000/ 7T ) ° R2022%3 H
318 - HE & € £240,8548 7T
EREERSMERERZRSESF
(20214F : 240,854 T E BIEE
MEBMEREZRESF) - 12022
F K2021F3 8318 @ R A E
SAHEEMNTFEE -

BEDEHRZE2ERB AR - ™
Ik JhGolden Toyz EEZEM
BRF -

d RER AEEERBEZHASER
~aEl (B ETRS - EHEs
RE RN 2 $HE 2% /2438,0008
7t (20214 : 476,000/ 7T) ° i
20227 K2021F3H31H @ 18
A6 2 BRI -

BEDFEAZ 2 EMBAF M
S, JhGolden ToyZ B# 2 & M
BRA -

(e) M2019F10H31H  AEEHEZR
WA —THERMZE - JWAAR
%= E 12 £ £ 58 415,000,000 7T
MZEERE - NEBRINMRIE
BIEEE—HRITFCRER
FIE p12.5%5T B - KR2021% 1A
298 - EFRWMEE KL RER
TBEREE ©
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(@)

(d)

During the year, the Group leased an office
from Sky Global Investments Limited (“Sky
Global”). Rentals charged by Sky Global during
the year amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2021:
HK$1,200,000). At 31 March 2022, rental
deposit of HK$240,854 was included in current
property rental deposits (2021: HK$240,854
was included in current property rental
deposits). At 31 March 2022 and 2021, no
accrued rental was payable to Sky Global.

Sky Global is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hover City which in turn is a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Toy.

During the year, the Group entered into
transactions with Hung Yick Metal Company
Limited (“Hung Yick”). Sales to Hung Yick
during the year amounted to HK$438,000
(2021: HK$476,000). At 31 March 2022 and
2021, there was no receivable from Hung Yick.

Hung Yick is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hover City which in turn is a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Toy.

On 31 October 2019, the Group entered into a
loan agreement with Hover City for a loan
facility to the extent of HK$15,000,000 offered
to the Group by Hover City. The sum drawn
down by the Group would bear interest at
2.5% over the best lending rate quoted by a
bank in Hong Kong. On 29 January 2021, the
loan agreement was terminated with no
outstanding balances.

2021/22 Annual Report %R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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H = 2022 /F 3 A 31 HILFJE For the year ended 31 March 2022

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

®)

R2021F2 818 » A% B EKong
FaiftKong Failm 7~ & B 12 &9
40,000,000 TE X MEFI L E
A piE o WHR2021F9818 #
— F 1% KX £50,000,000/8 JT ° &K
£ B IREA KIE IR F F E5%
AR CRFEA ASERIMNE
%8 /43,000,000 7T (20214 :
20,000,000 7T) ° B 3 & FE &
F B A44,060,0007% 7T & 72021
F10H B EHEE - Kong Faid
F A UELH) A B /948,000 JT
(20214 : 112,000/87T) °

LR EFMERETERRE

(f)

On 1 February 2021, the Group entered into a
loan agreement with Kong Fai for a loan facility
to the extent of HK$40,000,000 offered to the
Group by Kong Fai and further extent to
HK$50,000,000 on 1 September 2021. The
sum drawn down by the Group will bear
interest at 5% per annum. The total sum drawn
down by the Group was HK$43,000,000 (2021:
HK$20,000,000) during the year. The loans and
accrued interest amounted to HK$44,060,000
were fully repaid in October 2021. Interest
charged by Kong Fai during the year amounted
to HK$948,000 (2021: HK$112,000).

The remuneration of directors, which are key

AERESHMOT ¢ management personnel during the period was
as follows:

2022%F 20214

2022 2021

FHE T TFHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

e MEAMEF Salaries and other benefits 2,700 2,660

IR R A8 F B AR Retirement benefits cost 54 54

2,754 2,714

2021/22 Annual Report %R
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Financial Summary

e RESULTS
HZE3A3MBLEE
Year ended 31 March
20184 20194 20204 202148 20224
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
FET FET FET FET FTERT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
WA Revenue 86,926 85,372 67,413 37,173 114,637
BRI ATEE Loss before tax (8,945) (12,802) (23,237) (8,517) (13,776)
FrEfeR Income tax expenses - - - (243) (304)
RARREEN 2 Loss for the year attributable
FEEE to owners of the Company (8,945)  (12,802)  (23,237) (8,760)  (14,080)
EEHEHEE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
M3A31H
At 31 March
20184 20194 20204 20214 20224
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
FET FET FET FET TERT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
LEME Total assets 100,271 88,103 106,168 81,595 53,470
BfELE Total liabilities (7,984) (7,813) (50,016) (33,129)  (19,093)
Exhmem Total equity 92,287 80,290 56,152 48,466 34,377

G-VISION INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BN EREEERAT
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